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Financial Highlights
R RE
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | wish to present the
annual results of Telefield International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2014 (the “Year”).

Over the past year, the global economic recovery has been slowed by
the volatility of the Euro, which has dipped significantly against the US
dollar. Consequently, consumption sentiment has weakened, which in
turn has presented many challenges to the Group. We have therefore
promptly adjusted our business strategies and implemented strict cost
control measures to mitigate the impact of the weaker Euro and decline
in consumer confidence.

During the Year, the Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS”) maintained
steady growth, leading to a modest increase in the overall revenue of the
Group. The satisfactory performance of the EMS business towards the
second half year was primarily due to the ongoing growth of this segment
and healthy demand from the market. This progress was reinforced by our
technical expertise and ability to meet increasingly stringent production
requirements. Consequently, we have also been able to earn the trust
of leading international consumer electronic brands. Aside from tapping
existing markets, we have explored niche segments and will continue to
develop more specialised products to sustain growth as well.

With regards to our distribution business, the rise in operating expenses,
including advertising and marketing costs, as well as an increase in product
warranty and inventory provision for coping with fierce competition and
expansion in emerging markets pertaining to the distribution businesses
have combined to dampen the Group’s profitability. However, we are fully
committed to raising our competitiveness in the year ahead. While the
business environment is expected to remain lacklustre, we will continue
to direct our energies towards broadening the distribution network, which
will be supported by the new GAEMS product range. The unique design
and functionality of the new products are set to both attract the attention
of retail distribution giants in the United States and open the way for
penetrating emerging markets.
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To address rising production costs, we will continue to implement
initiatives designed to streamline operations and utilize resources more
efficiently, such as the employment of strict cost controls over production
and scrupulous management of inventory. At the same time, we will seek
to minimise foreign exchange rate fluctuation risk by conducting prudent
hedging activities when appropriate.

In view of the unstable global economic environment, we will maintain a
cautious approach towards managing the Group’s development, with our
focus remaining on bolstering our standard of service and optimising our
product mix in order to promptly seize opportunities that emerge. We will
also closely monitor developments in the consumer electronics market and
manufacturing sector, taking the necessary action to protect the Group’s
interests and enhance profitability.

| would like to take this opportunity to extend my gratitude to every
member of the Telefield workforce for their diligence and perseverance
over the past year. | wish to also offer my appreciation to all of our
customers, suppliers and business partners for their unwavering support,
which forms the foundation for our long-term growth.

Cheng Han Ngok Steve

Chairman
27 March 2015
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The global economy has continued to experience difficulty in realising
growth as many developed countries remained under the shadow of the
financial crisis, while emerging economies have experienced less dynamic
growth. With the outlook remaining unclear, consumer confidence has
waned, particularly in the United States and Europe. For the Group, it
has faced increasingly stiff competition, compounded by a rise in sales
deduction on product warranty programme. Moreover, the unexpected
decline of the Euro against the US dollar directly impacted on the Group’s
profit. Despite the Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS”) business
performing steadily, the distribution businesses experienced a decline,
which in turn reduced the Group’s profit growth momentum during the
Year.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded revenue of
HK$1,832.9 million (2013: HK$1,825.5 million). Gross profit amounted to
HK$348.5 million, compared with HK$373.3 million in 2013. The Group
recorded a profit attributable to owners of the Company of HK$0.6 million
(2013: HK$28.6 million).

Adhering to the principle of prudent financial management, the Group has
maintained a healthy financial position during the review period, with cash
and cash equivalents amounting to HK$185.8 million (2013: HK$183.1
million). To reward shareholders for their ongoing support, the Board has
recommended a final dividend of HK cents 1.5 per share for the Year.
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Electronic Manufacturing Services Business

The first half year saw consumption sentiment remain weak; however,
a modest upswing was experienced during the second half year.
Consequently, the EMS business achieved turnover of HK$937.4 million
(2013: HK$886.8 million) for the Year, thereby accounting for 51.1% of
the Group’s total turnover (2013: 48.6%).

With the market outlook remaining clouded during the financial year, and
the aggressive movement of the US dollar against many major world
currencies resulted in conservative ordering practices among the Group’s
customers, the management placed added attention towards optimising
the Group’s product portfolio, ensuring that both communications and
non-communications products catered for the needs of renowned
international consumer electronic brands. Production and labour costs
were also under the close scrutiny of the management, which led to efforts
to lower the cost per unit produced and protect the profit margin. Besides,
the ongoing on-job-training provided to staff members and enhancement
of automation boosted production efficiency. Aside from the review of
internal operations, the Group sought to bolster relations with its raw
material suppliers so as to ensure the availability of such materials.

Distribution Businesses

The total turnover of the distribution business amounted to HK$895.5
million (2013: HK$938.7 million), which was mainly due to weak
consumption sentiment in Europe and the United States, where the Group
also faced fierce competition despite building increasingly comprehensive
distribution networks. Apart from cut-throat competition, a rise in
sales deduction on product warranty programme, and higher costs of
advertising and marketing, as well as the unexpected depreciation of the
Euro all led to a lower profit margin.
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The communications business principally involves the distribution of
small and medium business phone systems (“SMB phone systems”)
in the United States and wireless communication products via
Fargo Telecom. Revenue generated from this segment amounted
to HK$250.6 million (2013: HK$252.3 million) for the Year.

The multimedia products and computer accessories business
achieved turnover of HK$557.7 million (2013: HK$594.4 million).
Among the new products that stood out during the Year included
the Volks-tablet PC, tablet PC with Microsoft Windows 8.1
Pro and other tablet PC designed specifically for a renowned
German telephone service provider. Given that the introduction
of new products featuring 4G operations and the launch of a
new operating system in the second half year have received
favourable response from the market, the Group has continued to
maintain a top position in the tablet PC market in Germany. Owing
to effective marketing strategies that are complemented by an
efficient distribution network, the management aims to encourage
further growth of the business by expanding the distribution
network to include emerging markets.

To spur the growth of the gaming products and toys distribution
business, the Group expanded its distribution channels through
leveraging its long-standing partnership with a video game and
entertainment products retailer in the United States. However, the
delayed launch of a new series of GAEMS products affected the
performance of this segment. Nonetheless, the Group believes that
when the new series is introduced, it will be warmly received by
the market, help raise brand awareness of GAEMS products and
deliver respectable sales contribution to this segment within 2015.
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Management Discussion
EEETWR D

and Analysis

Geographical Analysis 1 B A

Revenue by Country
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In respect of revenue based on geographical region, total revenue from
major European countries (Germany, United Kingdom, Switzerland,
France, Poland and Italy) amounted to HK$935.6 million (2013: HK$876.2
million), thus accounting for 51.0% of the Group’s overall turnover. PRC
(mainly Hong Kong) represented the second largest market for the Group,
with HK$351.3 million (2013: HK$351.3 million) in revenue generated
during the Year, accounting for 19.2% of the Group’s total turnover.
The United States and other countries recorded revenue of HK$278.9
million (2013: HK$294.8 million) and HK$267.1 million (2013: HK$303.2
million) respectively, representing 15.2% and 14.6% of the Group’s overall
turnover.

10 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited #rE B2 A A Annual Report 3§ 2014

BEHWESSHBA  REZTZHBMEX
(R HKE--HL - EZ8 - FEEEARA)
7 48 U2 A 935,600,000/ 0 (—Z T — = F -
876,200,000/ 7T ) * 1548 & ¥ FH51.0% ° F
B (XFZREB)ERAKEEE KM% A
%5 7% 351,300,000 B T WA (Z T —=F ¢
351,300,000 7T) * {H42 & £FEM19.2% ° X
& Ab B R Bl 9> 518515 278,900,000/8 L (=&
— =4F : 294,800,000/ 7t ) &% 267,100,000 T
—Z— =4 : 303,200,000/ 7T ) * {FLALEEE
#915.2% 5 14.6% °



Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded total revenue
of HK$1,832.9 million (2013: HK$1,825.5 million). The Group managed
to maintain a steady level of revenue as a result of the increase in EMS
business despite the declined contribution of the distribution businesses.

The Group’s reporting segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. There are two broad groups of business
units for segment accounting purpose, EMS and Distribution whereas
the latter can be subdivided into communications products, multimedia
products and computer accessories, gaming products and toys.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the revenue from EMS increased
by 5.7% to HK$937.4 million (2013: HK$886.8 million), whereas the
revenue from Distribution segment decreased by 4.6% to HK$895.5
million (2013: HK$938.7 million).

Revenue by Segment (HK$’000)
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The major growth driver of the total revenue was the non-communications
products in EMS which mainly include appliances and appliances control
products and beauty care equipment. The growth momentum of the
revenue generated from EMS had been reduced by the decline of revenue
in distribution businesses which include both communications and non-
communications products.

The growth in the overall revenue was mainly attributable to the following
factors:

The revenue generated from EMS has been increased from HK$886.8
million for the year 2013 to HK$937.4 million for the Year which in turn
bolstered by the increase resulting from appliances & appliances control
of HK$5.1 million and the increase in revenue from beauty care equipment
of HK$27.4 million,

The revenue generated from multimedia products and computer
accessories of Distribution Businesses of HK$557.7 million (2013:
HK$594.4 million) representing a decrease of HK$36.7 million. The
revenue generated from communications products of Distribution
Businesses of HK$250.6 million (2013: HK$252.3 million) representing a
decrease of HK$1.7 million, and

The continuing revenue generated from the gaming products and toys of
HK$87.2 million (2013: HK$92.1 million) and the revenue also accounted
for approximately 4.8% (2013: 5.0%) of the Group’s total revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales increased relatively by 2.2% from HK$1,452.3 million in 2013
to HK$1,484.4 million in 2014 as a result of the drop in gross margin rate
under stiff market competition.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE & D

Gross Profit EF

Gross profit decreased by 6.6% from HK$373.3 million to HK$348.5 FEHJF373,300,0007% T3 6.6 % 2 348,500,000
million, while the gross profit margin slightly reduced to 19.0% (2013: BT MEMEAEMTEEI0.0%(ZF—=
20.4%). The gross profit was contributed by the EMS segment of 53.6% F:204%) - KREETFRERBEDBHEFN A
(2013: 41.3%) and distribution businesses of 46.4% (2013: 58.7%). The  53.6%( - — =14 : 41.3%) * KB D HEKEH
decrease in gross profit was primarily attributable to the net effect of EMEL6.4%(ZF—=45F : 58.7%) o EFF D

following causes: FERHRUANERFERE

Gross Profit by Segment (HK$’000)
SEBEF (FHET)
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Annual Report ££%R 2014 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited FE2FRERER AR

13



(i) The distribution segment of the Group experienced declining
activities both in volume and gross profit in the year. The volume
decreased by 4.6% and the gross profit of the segment decreased
by 26.2% to HK$161.8 million (2013: HK$219.2 million) mainly
causing by:

a. a rise in sales deduction on product warranty programme
and the depreciation of Euro with a fixed Euro selling price
against the purchase cost in US dollars to the distribution
of multimedia products and computer accessories under
the brand “TrekStor” and;

b. the decreasing gross margin rate of the multimedia products
and computer accessories

(if) The continuing expansion into the EMS business gives the
increasing level of gross profit for the year 2014. An increasing
portion of the gross profit is now derived from EMS businesses
53.6% (2013: 41.3%) during the year.

Other income

Other income increased by 175.7% from HK$23.9 million in 2013 to
HK$65.9 million in 2014. The increase is mainly representing the promotion
contribution of HK$15.9 million, the reversal of the overprovided license
fee provisions of HK$5.9 million, gain on derivative financial assets or
liabilities of HK$9.1 million, gain on financial liabilities at fair value through
profit & loss of HK$6.0 million, compensation from suppliers of HK$4.0
million and the discount on acquisition of HK$1.9 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses accounted for approximately 6.9% in
2018 and 8.8% in 2014 of the Group’s revenue respectively. The increase
is mainly caused by the increase in advertising campaign and marketing
expenses.
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Administration expenses

Administration expenses accounted for approximately 8.4% in 2013
and 10.3% in 2014 of the Group’s revenue respectively. The increase in
expenditure of HK$35.5 million is mainly caused by the increase in salary
of HK$14.1 million, the increase in rent and rate of HK$1.4 million, the
increase in net exchange loss of HK$7.2 million, the increase in travelling
of HK$2.7 million and the additional expenses recorded for the newly
acquired subsidiary joined in late first half of 2014 by HK$4.4 million.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses increased by 24.9% from HK$67.0 million in
2013 to HK$83.7 million in 2014. The increase was mainly attributable to
the net effect of the increase in bad debt provision of HK$24.3 million, and
the additional research and development cost of HK$1.8 million expended
by the Group to enhance its design and manufacturing ability, offsetting
by the favorable impact of the absence of loss in fair value change in
financial liabilities.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs mainly comprise interest payments for
the Group’s bank loans, import/export loans, factoring charges and
implicit interest on financial liabilities. The Group’s finance costs were
approximately HK$15.9 million in 2014 and HK$13.3 million in 2013,
represented approximately 0.9% and 0.7% of the revenue in 2014 and
2013 respectively.

Income tax expenses

The Group’s income tax expense represents amounts of income tax
paid by the Group, at the applicable tax rates in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, PRC, Japan, the US, India,
Italy, Luxembourg and Germany. The Group had no tax payable in other
jurisdictions during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014.

The Group’s effective income tax rates for the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2014 were approximately 16.3% and -12.9%, respectively.
The reduction in the Group’s effective tax rate during the year 2014 was
primarily attributable to the increase in tax losses of individual subsidiaries
in the Group comparing with 2013.
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Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by
approximately 97.9% from approximately HK$28.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013 to approximately HK$0.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The Group’s net profit margin attributable
to owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
0.083% (2013: 1.56%).

Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling interests

Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling interests amounts to the
loss of HK$42.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
profit of HK$2.8 million). The increase in the loss was primarily caused by
the unsatisfactory performance of the distribution businesses.

The Group generally finances its operations and capital expenditure by
internally generated cashflows and the proceeds from the Company’s
initial public offering in January 2011.

As at 31 December 2014, the cash and cash equivalents amounted to
HK$185.8 million, representing an increase of HK$2.7 million from 2013.
Respective sum of 39.7%, 29.8% and 22.0% of the cash and cash
equivalents was denominated in RMB, US dollars and HK dollars and
others 8.5% was denominated in various currencies.

The Group’s current ratio remains in a healthy position at 1.3 times (2013:
1.41 times).

As at 31 December 2014, the total interest-bearing bank borrowings
were HK$117.1 million (2013: HK$111.8 million), comprised primarily of
bank loans and overdrafts and import/export loans. These borrowings
are all repayable within one year. The majority of these borrowings were
denominated in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Euro and the interest
rates applied were primarily subject to floating rate terms.

The Group was in a net cash position (cash and cash equivalents less total
bank borrowings) of HK$68.7 million such that no gearing ratio applies.
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Cash flow

In 2014, HK$52.6 million was generated from the operating activities,
whilst HK$5.5 million were spent on financing activities and HK$43.4
million were spent on investing activities respectively. Net cash outflow
from financing activities was mainly related to the net bank borrowings
raised of HK$5.3 million offset by the dividend paid of HK$16.4 million.

Exchange risk exposure

The Group mitigates its foreign exchange rate risk through the use of
derivative financial instruments. The Group primarily enters into foreign
currency forward contracts to reduce the effects of fluctuating foreign
currency exchange rates, in particular, the exchange rate between Euro
and US dollars as well as exchange rate between US dollars and RMB.
The Group categorises these instruments as being entered into for
purposes other than trading.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had forward contacts and currency
options of fair value of approximately of HK$0.1 million and HK$4.8 million
respectively. The contract amount of the forward contracts and currency
options is equivalent of HK$15.5 million and HK$37.7 million.

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure for 2014 amounted to HK$26.2 million and capital
commitments as at 31 December 2014 amounted to HK$15.3 million.
Both the capital expenditure and capital commitments were mainly related
to the acquisition of plant and machinery to cope with the increase in
business volume.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2013 and 2014, none of the Group’s assets was
pledged.
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has three (2013: three) patent
infringement claims lodged by E-Ink Corp. against one of its subsidiaries,
seeking for an injunction against the sale of ebook reader and for a
compensation of approximately HK$9.4 million (2013: HK$10.7 million).
The management considers E-Ink Corp.’s allegations are without merits
and thus no provision for loss had been provided. Subsequent to the
reporting period, two out of the three patents infringement claims were
suspended by the Mannheim Court resulting from the favorable judgement
to the Group in parallel nullity action counter claim lodged by the Group
with the Federal Patent Court in Germany, whilst the third patent claim
was currently subject to the review of expert appointed by the Mannheim
Court in regard to its validity.

A copyright collecting agency has unilaterally announced copyright fees
for certain storage products and multimedia products of the Group
sold in Germany. Management estimated that the alleged claims from
the copyright collecting agency at the end of the reporting period are
approximately HK$44.6 million (2013: HK$53.9 million) and HK$95.7
million (2013: HK$ 57.7 million) respectively. The directors consider that
the unilaterally announced copyright rates are either non applicable or
excessive for these products and respective provision, if required, has
been duly made by the Group to cover the expected maximum liabilities
pursuant to the best knowledge of the directors.

Acquisitions, disposals and significant investment

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group obtained 83%
control of Falcom GmbH (“Falcom”) by subscribing newly allotted ordinary
shares of Falcom and acquiring shares from existing shareholders at a
total cash consideration of HK$4.4 million. Falcom was engaged in design,
development and production of automatic vehicle location tracking system
and asset tracking products during the year.

Furthermore, the Group acquired the 10.575 % equity interest of Fargo
Telecom Holdings Limited (“Fargo Telecom”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, at a cash consideration of HK$0.6 million
pursuant to a share subscription agreement.

Annual Report &%} 2014

HREE

R-ZT—ME+=-F=+—H8 * E-Ink Corp.[AI A&
EE-—BHBARRH=ZR(ZT—=F: =R)
EREERE  SREARAETFTEMESNHEE
BHEHS - WREHI,400,0008L(ZF—=
£ :10,700,0007T) - BEEER A * E-Ink Corp.
IR R Z A KR - B B ET IR A48 K
B RRERE  E-FEFNEREREFT
M i 2 /818 ABT (Mannheim Court) B 28 5 & 2
ERBHEFETIRR AR RENRFITERFL
PHAEENBFFAMEL R  ME=ZFRRE
B RIZEHRS8ARIE ENERE A RIEETT
BE -

—RIREREREE S MASE RN EEH
ENETHREGRZHEERNRERE - 1
WMEMKR  EEEMIZREREREERE
REEEH B E44,600,0008 T (ZF—=4F :
53,900,000 7t ) % 95,700,000 (=& — =
 : 57,700,000 70) - EERAREFTEEMHH
hrie B 2 FE m MR R E N 5 TSR
= MASERBEEEEENRA  2RBEHREK
RNEARNE ERIELEE B -

g - HEREARRE
HE_T-NF+_A=+—RALLFE &£
B35 B 17 4838 £ X (84,400,000 7T 72 i Falcom
GmbH([ Falcom ] ) #7223 E @Ak R WS IR B AR
% 42 0 EX 45 Falcom 83% 12 #l#  FalcomM F A
WERT  RABREEGDEWTE R R
REEBRRER -

o REBERBEROAEBZURSNKE
600,000/ T B Fargo Telecom Holdings Limited
([Fargo Telecom ] © — A B R L B B Ak
SZAT))HI10.575% % ©



As at 31 December 2014, the Group also undertakes to further acquire,
by stages but not later than 30 April 2017, up to 31.725% the equity
interests of Fargo Telecom currently held by the non-controlling parties
of Fargo Telecom. The consideration of the shares is determined by
reference to 5 times of the net profits after tax of Fargo Telecom for the
years as agreed by the parties.

In addition, the Group also acquired 51% interests in a piece of land and
a building in India upon the purchase of 51% equity share interests of
Lucky Century International Limited (refer to our announcement dated 14
January 2014) at a total cash consideration of HK$12.4 million.

Apart from the aforesaid transaction, there was no material acquisition,
disposal or investment by the Group.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had approximately 2,550 employees
in various operating units located Hong Kong, USA, Germany and PRC. In
order to attract and retain high quality talents to ensure smooth operation
and cater for the Group’s constant expansion, it offers competitive
remuneration packages, with reference to market conditions and individual
qualifications and experience.
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In view of the slow global economic recovery and volatile currency
exchange rates, the management remains cautious about the upcoming
financial year. It will therefore adjust its business strategies in line with
market expectations and in the best interest of the Group.

To minimize its exposure to currency exchange risk, the Group will
reinforce relevant safeguards and employ hedging activities when
practicable. From a retail perspective, the Group will consider adjusting
the selling price of products upwards even though this might affect
revenue in the short term. Nevertheless, given the technological advantage
that the Group’s products enjoy, the management trusts that such an
adjustment will be accepted in the market and will result in greater profit
contributions to the Group. With regards to the supply chain, the Group
will negotiate with suppliers for more favourable payment terms given its
long-held ties with such parities, and thereby minimise currency fluctuation
risk.

As for the gaming products and toys business, the launch of new GAEMS
product series in the first half of 2015 is expected to provide fresh
impetus to the Group’s growth in the coming year. The GAEMS brand will
encompass an expanded range of products, including new devices that
have already garnered encouraging market response. The management
trusts that the unique design and functionality of products in the pipeline
will spark interest among leading distributors in the United States, and
provide the catalyst for sales network expansion to regions including
Australia and parts of Europe. Further, the Group’s ongoing participation
in gaming exhibitions will raise awareness among target customers of the
full breadth of GAEMS products, leading to greater brand recognition.
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To address the issues of production cost and enhance profitability, which
are concerns that many manufacturers share, the Group will implement
strict cost control measures and cautiously manage inventory to exploit
economies of scale. The Group will also continue to develop the EMS and
Distribution Businesses, with the objective of generating synergies among
relevant operations. Such efforts will go towards improving the Group’s
overall profitability.

Increasing market penetration for all of its businesses will continue to be
an important pursuit of the management as well. While extensive business
networks have already been established, specifically in the United States,
Germany, and other European and Asian countries, there remain new
markets to penetrate. In the PRC, for example, the Group will continue
to bolster its online and retail presence. In the coming year, the Group
will also seek to strengthen existing ties while forging new alliances with
regional distributors to encourage growth.

Though many of the challenges confronted by the Group will continue to
persist in the new financial year, the management remains optimistic about
the Group’s well being. Such optimism is based on the awareness that
the Group possesses, sound fundamentals, distinctive products, strong
business ties, clear strategies and an extensive business network, all of
which will be the building blocks for long-term growth.
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The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to protect the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2014, except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of
the Code as described below.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The Company does not have any officer with the title of
“chief executive” and this is deviated from the code provision A.2.1 of
the Code. Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve, who acts as the Chairman and
the Executive Director of the Company, is also responsible for overseeing
the general operations of the Group. The Board will meet regularly to
consider major matters affecting the operations of the Group. The Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management of the Group. The
roles of the respective Executive Directors and senior management who
are in charge of different functions complement the role of the Chairman
and Chief Executive. The Board believes that this structure is conducive
to strong consistent leadership enabling the Group to operate efficiently.

The Company understands the importance to comply with the code
provision A.2.1 and will continue to consider the feasibility to comply
with the said code provision. If compliance with the said provision is
determined, appropriate persons will be nominated to assume the different
roles of chairman and chief executive officer.

Code Provision A.6.7

Under code Provision A.6.7. of the Code, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board members,
should give the board and any committees on which they serve the benefit
of their skills, expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications through
regular attendance and active participation. They should also attend
general meetings and develop balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent, the Independent Non-executive
Director, did not attend the annual general meeting held on 30 May 2014
due to other business engagement.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) as the required standard for securities transactions
by Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors
and all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 December
2014 and up to the date of this annual report.

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The three Independent Non-
executive Directors account for more than one-third of the Board. The
composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve (Chairman)
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry

Mr. Ng Kim Yuen

Ms. Fok Pui Yin

Mr. Lee Kai Bon

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter

Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent

Dr. Xue Quan

The biographical details of the Directors and other senior management
are disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 33 to 38 in this annual report. The
composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experiences
appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of the Group and to
exercise of independence and is well balanced. Each of the Directors
has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and strategic planning
experiences that may contribute to the business of the Group. The
Company has complied with the requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and (2)
of the Listing Rules since the Listing Date. All Independent Non-executive
Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their independence
as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of
the Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of
the shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of
other stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in setting
forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its statutory
responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic plan, key
operational initiatives, major investments and funding decisions. It also
reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies principal risks of the
Group’s business and ensures implementation of appropriate systems
to manage these risks. Daily business operations and administrative
functions of the Group are delegated to the management.

Board Meetings and Procedures

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision A.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity to
attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings are
sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior to
the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their views at
meetings and major decisions will only be taken after deliberation at Board
meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or
material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings
and the draft minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment on the
final version of which are endorsed in the subsequent Board meeting.

All Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed
term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. The
Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and still considers the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent as at the date of this annual report.
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Name of member REHE
Executive Directors: HITESF -

Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve (Chairman) BEMEE (F/F)
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry ERM LA

Mr. Ng Kim Yuen RigIRT A

Ms. Fok Pui Yin EMBL+

Mr. Lee Kai Bon TR E
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUINTESE
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter SRR LA

Dr. Xue Quan EERET

Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent BmAtE T

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Pursuant to the amendments to the Corporate Governance Code of
the Listing Rules which took effect on 1st April, 2012, under code
provision A.6.5, all directors should participate in Continuous Professional
Development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contributions to the Board remain informed and relevant.

The Company is obliged to make arrangements for training to its Directors
at the Company’s expenses. The Company had organised training on the
Listing Rules for the Directors in 2014. The training were conducted by
Alphalink Corporate Secretarial Services Limited with presentation and
briefing materials. In addition, individual Directors also participated in other
courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director or further enhancement of their professional development by
way of attending training courses or via online aids or reading relevant
materials. The Company Secretary reports from time to time the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance
practices and other regulatory regime to the Directors with written
materials.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company commencing from 1 July 2010 (save for Mr. Cheng Han
Ngok Steve, whose service contract commenced from 18 May 2010) until
termination in accordance with the respective contract. Subject to the
terms of the service contract, each service contract may be terminated by
either party thereto giving to the other party not less than three months’
prior written notice.
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Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from the date of signing of their respective letter of appointment and
may be terminated by either party by giving at least three months’ prior
written notice.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, at least one third of the
Directors are required to retire from office by rotation. Each Director shall
retire from office at least once every three years and shall include those
who have been longest in office since their last election or re-election.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, new Directors appointed by the Board during the year shall
retire and submit themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting
immediately following their appointments.

The Board has established specific committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, with
written terms of reference to assist them in the efficient implementation
of their functions. Specific responsibilities have been delegated to the
above committees.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from
time to time to facilitate the Company’s operations.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 31 December
2010. The Audit Committee had three members comprising our three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Kwan Pun Fong
Vincent (Chairman), Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter and Dr. Xue Quan.
The composition and members of the Audit Committee complies with the
requirements under Rules 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system of
the Group. The written terms of reference which describes the authority
and duties of the Audit Committee have been revised by the Board on 30
March 2012 to conform to the provisions of the Revised Code, a copy of
which is posted to the Company’s website and HKEx website.

The works performed by the Audit Committee in 2014 included the

following:
° to review the financial results and reports;
° to review the reports from external auditors, management letters

and management response;

° to review the matters in relation to internal audit and the
effectiveness of the internal control system;

° to review the Group’s compliance with statutory and regulatory
requirements;

° to review corporate governance matters; and

° to review the re-appointment of the external auditors.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during 2014 and the individual
attendance of each member is set out below:

Name of member

BEHH

Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent (Chairman) WA tET (FE)

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter B E R B &L
Dr. Xue Quan BERE L

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2014
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Annual Report F%§ 2014

BERZBEZEARGEIEREHMERAKH
ZHERERF RABEZERS - MIBZERE
SN MBENEHRERECR T ——F
ZAZTAREFESFELER - UNARERT

RIBIES - R EETRERER ERART

BB 483 -

EHE RGN T EB TR LIEREATH

5% :

© EMMBRERES

o BMSMERBERE  EREXLERER
BEE

«  ENARABENRABBERRRENL
SESE

o BMAREETEEREERENHE

. BEHEEEREE R

O ERINIZBEINEREE -

EREEEN T WEBHAKNSE  SKE
mﬂ%ﬁfﬁﬁﬂmﬁr

Number of meetings
attended/held
HESEBE AHERHE

4/5
5/5
5/5

ARREE-ZT—NF+_A=1+—HILFEHN
FEXBEORKERZTESETER -



Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 31 December 2010
and currently comprises one Executive Director, namely, Mr. Cheng Han
Ngok Steve, and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter (Chairman), Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent
and Dr. Xue Quan. Pursuant to a resolution of the Board passed on 30
March 2012, Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter has been appointed as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of reference,
which have been revised by the Board on 30 March 2012 pursuant to
the Revised Code. The terms of reference are currently available on the
Company’s website and HKEx websites.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to review
and determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to the Directors and senior management and to
make recommendation to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management. No Director
shall participate in any discussion about his or her own remuneration.
The remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference to their
respective experience, responsibilities with the Group and general market
conditions.

One meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the year
ended 31 December 2014 to review the remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management. The individual attendance of each
member is set out below.

Name of member REHA

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter (Chairman) BMGRRALE (F/F)
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve BRE S A

Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent BmAtE LT

Dr. Xue Quan BERIEL
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 31 December
2010 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with
the code provision of the Code. To comply with the amended Code
which became effective on 1 September, 2013, the Board (on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee) amended the terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee to adopt a policy concerning
diversity in the board of directors.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include the making
of recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and
succession planning for the Directors. The specific terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are currently available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Board appointments are based on merit and candidates are considered
based on objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and length of service. The Company remains committed to
meritocracy in the Boardroom, which requires a diverse and inclusive
culture where the Directors believe that their views are heard, their
concerns are attended to and they serve in an environment where bias,
discrimination and harassment on any matter are not tolerated.

The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination Committee
during the year ended 31 December, 2014:

° review the structure, size and composition (including but without
limitation, the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

° review the retirement of directors by rotation and the re-appointment
of the retiring directors at the 2014 AGM,;

° review the reappointment of directors during the year; and
° assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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The Nomination Committee consists of four members, comprising one
Executive Director, namely, Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve, and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan
Peter, Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent and Dr. Xue Quan (Chairman). Pursuant
to a resolution of the Board passed on 30 March 2012, Dr. Xue Quan has
been appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

One Nomination Committee meeting was held and the individual
attendance of each member is set out below.

BEHH

Name of member

BRI (2E)

Dr. Xue Quan (Chairman)

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter B ERB L
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve TR T A
Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent MmAiEL

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.

The statement by the auditors of the Company about their responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the report of the independent
auditor’s report contained in the Annual Report. There are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The Company engaged RSM Nelson Wheeler as its external auditors
for the Year. Analysis of the remuneration in respect of audit services
provided by the external auditors is included in note 12 to the financial
statements in the Annual Report. For the Year, the total fee paid in respect
of the non-audit services is approximately HK$0.68 million.

The Board is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems. The internal control systems are designed to
meet the Group’s particular needs and the risks to which it is exposed.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure, maintaining proper
accounting records and ensuring the reliability of financial information
used for business and publication. Qualified management of the Group
maintains and monitors the internal control systems on an ongoing basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has appointed an
external independent internal control advisor to conduct continuous review
of the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the operation units in
the Group, covering all material controls, including financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions, etc. Based on the
assessment made by the internal control advisor, the Board considers
that the internal control systems of the Group are effective and the Audit
Committee has found no material deficiencies on the internal control
systems.

Convening of extraordinary general
requisition by shareholders

meeting on

The general meetings of our Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of our Company shall be held in each year. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting is referred to as an
extraordinary general meeting.
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According to article 64 of the Articles of Association of our Company,
the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general
meeting. Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the Secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting
shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution at general meetings may
follow the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

In order to keep shareholders well informed of the business activities and
direction of the Group, information about the Group has been provided to the
shareholders through financial reports and announcements. The Company
has established its own corporate website www.telefieldgroup.com.hk
as a channel to facilitate effective communication with its shareholders and
the public. The Company will continue to enhance communications and
relationships with its shareholders and investors.

Shareholders, investors and interested parties can make enquiries directly to
the Company through the following e-mail: enquiry@telefieldgroup.com.hk.

Constitutional Documents

During 2014, the Company has not made any changes to its Memorandum
and Articles of Association.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve, aged 61, an Executive Director and
Chairman of the Company since its incorporation on 18 May 2010, is
the founder of the Group and a director most of the major operating
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Cheng is responsible for the overall
strategic development of the Group’s businesses. He has over 35
years of experience in consumer electronic products industry. Under
Mr. Cheng’s leadership, the Group has succeeded to diversify from the
production of telecommunications products to a wider EMS industry
segment and entered into the branded products distribution sector.

Mr. Cheng is a FRARBUAHEEZEMNTEZEREEHEEZE (standing
committee member of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of the Baiyun District of Guangzhou). Mr. Cheng obtained
a Bachelor of Mathematics from the University of Waterloo in Canada
in October 1977 and a Higher Diploma in Electronic Engineering from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in November 1973. He and Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry are
brothers-in-law.

Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry, aged 55, an Executive Director since 1 July
2010, is the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary of the
Company. He is currently a director of most of the major operating
subsidiaries of the Group. He is also a Supervisor of Guangzhou Telefield
Limited (the “Guangzhou Telefield”) and Telefield Vision (Shanghai) Limited
(the “Telefield Vision (SH)”). Mr. Poon is responsible for developing and
implementing the Group’s strategic objectives and business plans. Mr.
Poon has over 25 years of experience in audit, accounting and finance.
He is currently a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is also an associate member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Poon obtained a Master Degree in
Business Administration from the University of Manchester in the United
Kingdom in December 2002 and a Professional Diploma in Accountancy
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from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in November 1983. Mr. Poon has been appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director of On Time Logistics Holdings
Limited (stock code: 6123), a company listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited with effective from 20 June 2014. Since October
2009 and up to February 2012, Mr. Poon has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of Sunlink International Holdings Limited (“Sunlink”)
(stock code: 2336), a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). His appointment
was subsequent to a winding-up petition against Sunlink which was filed
on 1 December 2008 and the petition was subsequently discharged in
February 2012. Mr. Poon has resigned as Independent Non-executive
Director of Sunlink International Holdings Limited with effect from 24
February 2012. Mr. Poon and Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve are brothers-
in-law.

Mr. Ng Kim Yuen, aged 54, an Executive Director since 1 July 2010,
is currently the general manager of manufacturing division of Telefield
Limited (the “Telefield (HK)”). Mr. KY Ng is also a director of Guangzhou
Telefield, Huizhou Telefield Limited (the “Huizhou Telefield”), Telefield
Vision (SH), Telefield Holdings Limited (formerly known as “Orient Power
Telecommunication Limited” and “Big Apple Enterprises Limited” (the
“Telefield (BVI)”)) and Telefield (HK). Mr. KY Ng has over 27 years of
experience in the electronics industry.

Mr. KY Ng is a chartered engineer of the Engineering Council and is a
member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and The Institution
of Electrical Engineers, the United Kingdom. He obtained a Master of
Science in Engineering from The University of Hong Kong in December
1989 and Associateship and Higher Diploma in Production and Industrial
Engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1983 and November 1982,
respectively.

Ms. Fok Pui Yin, aged 59, an Executive Director since 1 July 2010, is the
general manager of the administration division of Telefield (HK). Ms. Fok is
also a director of Aiko Beauty (Shenzhen) Limited (the “Aiko (S2)”), Modern
Channel Limited (the “Modern Channel”), Telefield Medical, Telefield (BVI)
and Telefield (HK) and certain subsidiaries. She is responsible for general
administration, procurement and information technology management of
the Group.
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Ms. Fok obtained a Bachelor of Business (Business Administration)
from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in September 2004,
a Professional Diploma in Enterprise Directorship awarded jointly by the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the Hong Kong Productivity Council
in August 2009, and a Diploma in Management Studies awarded jointly by
The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) and The Hong Kong Management Association in September
1992.

Mr. Lee Kai Bon, aged 55, an Executive Director since 1 July 2010, is a
general manager of the business division of Telefield (HK) and the Group’s
research and development centre. Mr. Lee is also a director of Telefield
(BVI), Telefield (HK), Guangzhou Telefield, Huizhou Telefield, Aiko (HK),
Aiko (SZ) and Telefield Vision (SH) and certain subsidiaries. Mr. Lee has
over 26 years of experience in consumer electronic products industry.
From November 1989 to November 1992. He served as an associate
consultant of the Hong Kong Productivity Council. Mr. Lee graduated with
a Bachelor of Science (Hons) from the University of Warwick, the United
Kingdom in July 1982.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter, aged 54, an Independent Non-
executive Director since 1 July 2010. Mr. Au-Yang is the Chief Financial
Officer of Bracell Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange). He is also a director of AsiaSoft Company Limited which
is the holding company of a group with businesses in different sectors
of the software industry. Prior to joining AsiaSoft Company Limited, Mr.
Au-Yang spent more than 20 years in the financial services sector in the
Asia-Pacific region. Mr. Au-Yang joined the HSBC group in 1985 and
became a co-head of Investment Banking, the Asia-Pacific region of the
HSBC group in 2001. Between 1985 and 2003 when he was with the
HSBC group, he worked on various equity capital fund-raising exercises
and mergers and acquisitions projects in the Asia-Pacific region. Between
2003 and 2006, Mr. Au-Yang was an Executive Director and the Chief
Operating Officer of the SFC. In late 2004, Mr. Au-Yang doubled up as the
Executive Director in charge of the corporate finance division of the SFC.
Mr. Au-Yang obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Studies
from the University of Bradford in England in July 1982, and a Master of
Science degree in Accounting and Finance from the London School of
Economics and Political Science in August 1983.
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Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent, aged 63, an Independent Non-executive
Director since 1 July 2010. Dr. Kwan has been appointed as Honorary
Professor in the Faculty of Engineering (MSC Program) in The University
of Hong Kong (“HKU”) since 2013. He has also been teaching in the
Faculty of Business in Lingnan University (MIBF Program) since 2012.
He has also been appointed as the Associate Director for the HKU
Zhejiang Institute of Research and Innovation since 2013. Dr. Kwan
was Executive Director for Executive Education Programs and Adjunct
Professor in the Faculty of Business and Economics in HKU from 2012
to 2013.

Dr. Kwan is a member of Public Affairs Forum, an associate member
of Central Policy Unit of the HKSAR Government and a member of
Hong Kong Policy Research Institute. He was appointed as a Council
Member of Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute since 2014.
He has been appointed a Standing Committee Member of the HKU
Convocation between July 2012 and June 2014. He was an Executive
Committee Member of the Hong Kong Economics Association with
effect from 2009. He has been an Independent Non-executive director
of Jiangling Motors Company Limited, a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, between 2008 and 2014.

Dr. Kwan worked with Yew Chung Education Foundation (“YCEF”) in
Hong Kong since March 2001 as YCEF's Chief Financial Officer and
new premises project manager. He retired from YCEF in February 2012.

Dr. Kwan is a Certified Practicing Accountant of CPA Australia, an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resources
Management, a fellow of the Institute of Management Consultants,
and a senior member of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing. Dr.
Kwan obtained a Doctoral Degree in Business Administration from
the University of Western Sydney in Australia in May 2004, a Master’s
Degree in Commerce from the University of Hitotsubashi in Japan in
March 1981, and a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences from HKU in
November 1973.
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Dr. Xue Quan, aged 49, an Independent Non-executive Director since
15 July 2010. Dr. Xue obtained a Doctor of Philosophy from & F&H%
KE (The University of Electronic Science and Technology of China) in
September 1993 and a Bachelor of Engineering from X &0 & T2 £ 8%
(Chengdu Institute of Radio Engineering) in July 1988. Dr. Xue is currently
a professor of the Department of Electronic Engineering and he was
Associate Vice President of the City University of Hong Kong from 2011 to
2014. He has over 13 years experience in consumer electronic products
industry. From January 2002 to February 2009, he was the managing
director of Shenzhen Goldradio Communication Ltd, a company engaged
in microwave and antenna components for satellite communications.
From October 1998 to May 1999, Dr. Xue was a senior engineer of Dynax
Electronics (HK) Limited, a company engaged in DVD components and
wireless communications.

Mr. Dwight T. Sakuma, aged 64, is the president of TFNA (US). He
joined the Group in January 2009 as the president of TFNA (US). Mr.
Sakuma is currently in charge of the North American business, which
includes managing sales, marketing, operations, product management
and business development of TFNA (US). Mr. Sakuma has held senior
management positions in sales, product management and business
development in the consumer electronics industry. Mr. Sakuma obtained
a Bachelor of Arts from the University of Washington in the US.

Mr. Shimon Szmigiel, aged 64, is the director and chief executive officer
of TrekStor (Germany). He joined the Group in October 2009 as the
director and chief executive officer of TrekStor (Germany). Mr. Szmigiel
has 30 years of experience in sales, product management and business
development in electronics industry. Mr. Szmigiel was educated in Israel
at a “Kibbutz” (a special closed-group-community) and graduated from a
high school in Mannheim, Germany.
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Mr. Dean Mercier, aged 53, CEO and board member of GAEMS since
May 2010, is the founder of GAEMS. Mr. Mercier is responsible for the
overall strategic direction and product vision of GAEMS. Mr. Mercier
obtained his MSCE (Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer) in 1998 at
Seattle Pacific University. Prior to founding GAEMS, Mr. Mercier worked
as IT business analyst and customer account manager then founded
his consulting company Lighthouse PM in 2002 and served as an
SME (Subject Matter Expert), project manager and business analyst
for major enterprise level state government, private, and healthcare
organizations throughout the United States. His expertise was in directing
and implementing human capital and labor management analytical
systems integrated into industry leading ERP and HR/Finance platforms.

He has over 12 years of human capital and labor management analytics
experience as an independent consultant. Prior to his IT career, Mr.
Mercier spent 19 years in the biotech industry and in the latter part of his
career in biotechnology, Mr. Mercier work in an R&D project management
and technician capacity testing and validating software/hardware solutions
for high volume automated testing platforms integrating into secure
Microsoft windows based operating system environments.

Mr. Xavier Dupont, aged 37, is the Chief Executive Officer of Fargo
Telecom Holdings Limited. He has been working 15 years in Asia including
China, Vietnam, India and Hong Kong; in different business position and
different fields such as heavy industry and Internet of things (IOT). He
joined Fargo Telecom Asia Limited in September 2004 in New Delhi INDIA
to lead the sales in the Northern Region and was transferred in November
2005 to the Hong Kong headquarter to support the overall Internet of
things activities. Mr Dupont studied in Grenoble Business School France
as well as in the University of Victoria Canada and holds a Master Degree
in Management.

Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry has been the company secretary of the Company
since 20 August 2010. His biographical details are set out in the sub-
section headed “Directors” in this section.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the Year.

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 53 to 57.

The Board has declared an interim dividend for the Year of HK cents
1.5 per ordinary share of the Company (2013: HK cents 1.5 per ordinary
share of the Company), totaling HK$6,176,000 which was paid on 10
October 2014.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK cents 1.5
per ordinary share in respect of the Year to shareholders on the register
of members of the Company on 10 June 2015. Subject to the approval
of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting, it is
expected that the final dividend will be paid on or around 26 June 2015.
The recommendation of the final dividend has been incorporated in the
financial statements as an allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position.
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The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands on 18 May 2010. Pursuant to a reorganisation scheme to
rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange, the Company became the
holding company of the companies now comprising the Group on 31
December 2010. On 27 January 2011 (the “Listing Date”) the shares of
the Company have been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

As part of the preparation for listing of the shares of the Company, the
Company implemented a capitalisation issue of 299,990,000 shares
and an issue of 100,000,000 new shares during its initial public offering
(the “IPO”) in 2011. All such shares issued were ordinary shares and the
100,000,000 new shares were issued at HK$1.20 per share. In February
2011, the underwriters of the Company’s IPO partially exercised the
over-allotment option and the Company issued an additional 11,714,000
new shares at HK$1.20 per share. The gross proceeds of the IPO and
the partial exercise of the over-allotment option received by the Company
were approximately HK$120.0 million and HK$14.1 million, respectively,
and the net proceeds were approximately HK$105.5 million and HK$14.1
million, respectively. Details of the plan for the use of proceeds from the
IPO are set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 14 January 2011.

As at the date of this report, approximately HK$35.9 million were utilized
for acquisitions of new brand businesses, approximately HK$23.9 million
were utilized for the expansion of brand businesses, approximately
HK$17.6 million for the expansion of production facilities, approximately
HK$1.5 million were utilized for establishing overseas and PRC marketing
offices, approximately HK$3.6 million for research and development
offices, approximately HK$6.0 million for general working capital of the
Group and the remaining balance of the net proceeds was placed in
certain financial institutions and licensed banks in Hong Kong as short-
term deposits.
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Report of the Directors

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements is set out on page 183.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements in
this annual report.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the Year
are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year are
set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of the subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

RESERVES

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the profits attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to HK$0.58 million. The
Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise share premium and
retained profits. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
Company’s share premium account may be applied by the Company in
paying distributions or dividend to shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the distribution or dividend
is proposed to be paid, the Company shall be able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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Report of the Directors

EETHRE

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had distributable reserves
amounting to HK$8,424,000, of which HK$6.2 million has been proposed
as a final dividend for the Year, calculated in accordance with statutory
provisions applicable in the Cayman Islands.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Related parties transactions of the Group during the Year are disclosed
in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, total sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 46.3% of the Group’s sales for the Year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 14.2%. Total purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 24.7% of the
Group’s purchases.

None of Directors, their associates or any substantial shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the listed issuers
share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market practices. The
Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to Directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in the paragraph
headed “Share Option Scheme” below.
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The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve (Chairman)
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry

Mr. Ng Kim Yuen

Ms. Fok Pui Yin

Mr. Lee Kai Bon

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter
Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent
Dr. Xue Quan

In accordance with Articles 108(a) and 108(b) of the Article of Association,
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry, Mr. Ng Kim Yuen, Mr. Lee Kai Bon will retire by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The Independent Non-executive
Directors are appointed for a period of three years.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr.Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter, Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent and Dr. Xue
Quan, and as at the date of this annual report, the Company still considers
them to be independent.

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 33 to 38 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

EETHRE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company commencing from their respective date of appointment
and each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into
a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of three
years commencing from their respective date of appointment, subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of
the Company pursuant to its articles of association, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements, no
Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group subsisted at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Year.
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Report of the Directors

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2014, interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) held by the
Directors and chief executives of the Company which have been notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code are as follows:

EEEWRE

EENRTETHRAERA QT REAH
ABEzRG > HBEROEEZzZERRK

S AL
KR

R-B-NF+_A=+—0 BEERAQA
ZTBABRA R R SHEEHE sw?il(m%,%
B R ERBISEXVER) Z 6 - BRI RIE
o BERBESRBEGHIFEXVIET RS
NEAME AR B RYI A Em RAR (BT
RIRE S R E R A BRSO EFRRER
BECEBERAR)  RELARBEFRPE
fRHIEI2{F AR AAFEZ BRMA - FRE
RAEST R M AN A B R R P72 4 25 SO& R N
T

Company/ Approximate

Name of percentage of

associated Number of issued share
Name corporation Nature of Interest Shares held capital

HE RITRE
=t DNEEEEEER EmEME BREE BHABES T
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve The Company Interest in controlled 243,942,000 59.25%
BT SE A P/ N/NE)| oorporation (Note 1)
EhHEE S (A1)
The Company Interest in controlled 30,646,000 7.44%
PIN/NC]| corporation (Note 1)
REmEEEERS (M)

Mr. Lee Kai Bon The Company Beneficial Interest 2,634,000 0.64%
TR FTE ZiN/NC] ExfEs
Mr. Ng Kim Yuen The Company Beneficial Interest 2,640,000 0.64%
RigRzESE /NG| ExfEs
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry The Company Beneficial Interest 540,000 0.13%
R LA /NG| ExmtEs
Ms. Fok Pui Yin The Company Beneficial Interest 1,950,000 0.47%
EMEx+ /NS ExtEs
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Note:

(1) Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve holds approximately 53.68% interest in Century Win (1)
Industrial Limited and Century Win Industrial Limited respectively holds approximately
53.30% interest in each of Dragon Fortune International Limited and Telefield
Charitable Fund Limited. Therefore, Mr. Cheng is deemed or taken to be interested
in all the Shares which are beneficially owned by each of Dragon Fortune International

Limited and Telefield Charitable Fund Limited.

Interest discloseable under the SFO and substantial

shareholders

As at 31 December 2014, the following persons/entities have an interest
or a short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

R

YaNi

SEXVEFSE2 K370 5

BEREER B L EEEERARH53.68% s +
KEBEXARRRDINELRREERATDRTERE
EEL AR ARZBIHFELS3.30%Ea - MEBLER
EEERARARNTEAEESERATSEES
BBENMEROTHRARE FEAER -

REESZRBERIBENEERER

RZZE—NE+-A=+—8 A TAL EgE
& S iRRERR (0 P B BRIB B H R EAE &G
&SRR R B EE - s o
B R EE S R E KA EI6IEAR AR AT
EMELMATRESEAERS AR

D\j%

Company/ Approximate
Name of percentage of
associated Number of issued share
Name corporation Nature of Interest Shares held capital
HEBTRAE
=18 NG )by B EmEME BREE BHAES L
Dragon Fortune International The Company Beneficial Interest 243,942,000 59.25%
Limited PN/NE] EatEas
FEEBEFEAR A A
Telefield Charitable Fund Limited The Company Beneficial Interest 30,646,000 7.44%
FEZEEESARAR ZAN/NE] BEamEs
Century Win Industrial Limited The Company Interest in controlled 243,942,000 59.25%
HRERBEZARAF] Vi N/NE]| corporation (Note 1)
REGEEER (M)
The Company Interest in controlled 30,646,000 7.44%
PAN/NG] corporation (Note 2)
Rt EEE R (Afat2)
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve The Company Interest in controlled 243,942,000 59.25%

BERtE

EN/NG|

corporation (Note 3)
REHEEER (A23)
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Company/

Approximate

Name of percentage of
associated Number of issued share
Name corporation Nature of Interest Shares held capital
HERITRAE
=y NG ) brN B EEME BFREE BABES L
The Company Interest in controlled 30,646,000 7.44%
iN/NE]| corporation (Note 3)
REGEEER (H773)
Ms. Ma Mei Han Elitte The Company Interest in controlled 243,942,000 59.25%
(“Mrs. Cheng”) PiN/NE]! corporation (Note 4)
BEMz+ ([EBAK]) REHEEER (Mit4)
The Company Interest in controlled 30,646,000 7.44%

Notes:

ZN/NG|

corporation (Note 4)

Lt AR (HiF4)

Century Win Industrial Limited holds approximately 53.30% interest in Dragon Fortune
International Limited. Therefore, Century Win Industrial Limited is deemed or taken
to be interested in all the Shares which are beneficially owned by Dragon Fortune
International Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Century Win Industrial Limited holds approximately 52.62% interest in Telefield
Charitable Fund Limited. Therefore, Century Win Industrial Limited is deemed or taken
to be interested in all the Shares which are beneficially owned by Telefield Charitable
Fund Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve holds approximately 53.68% interest in Century Win
Industrial Limited and Century Win Industrial Limited respectively holds approximately
53.30% interest in each of Dragon Fortune International Limited and Telefield
Charitable Fund Limited. Therefore, Mr. Cheng is deemed or taken to be interested
in all the Shares which are beneficially owned by each of Dragon Fortune International
Limited and Telefield Charitable Fund Limited.

Mrs. Cheng holds approximately 46.32% interest in Century Win Industrial Limited
and Century Win Industrial Limited respectively holds approximately 53.30% interest
in each of Dragon Fortune International Limited and Telefield Charitable Fund Limited.
Therefore, Mrs. Cheng is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares which
are beneficially owned by each of Dragon Fortune International Limited and Telefield
Charitable Fund Limited.
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At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective associates, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

During the period ended 31 December 2014, none of the Directors or
controlling shareholders of the Company nor their respective associates
is considered to have interests in a business that competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group
other than those businesses where the Directors have been appointed or
were appointed as directors to represent the interests of the Company.

As to attract and retain the eligible persons, to provide additional incentive
to them and to promote the success of the business of the Group, the
Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
31 December 2010 whereby the Board are authorised, at their absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to
subscribe for the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) to, inter alia,
any employees (full-time or part-time), directors, consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners
or service providers of the Group. The Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing from the date on which the Scheme
was adopted, subject to the early termination provisions contained in the
Scheme.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer
for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a Share
in respect of any particular option granted under the Scheme shall be a
price solely determined by the Board and notified to a participant and
shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the option; (i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share on the date of grant of the option provided always that
for the purpose of calculating the subscription price, where the Company
has been listed on the Stock Exchange for less than 5 trading days, the
issue price shall be used as the closing price for any trading day fall within
the period before the Listing Date.
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The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme does not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
from the Listing Date. The Company may at any time refresh such limit,
subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in compliance
with the Listing Rules, provided that the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes of the Company
does not exceed 30% of the shares in issue at the time. An option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during a period as the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten
years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof.

Since the adoption of the Scheme and up to 31 December 2014, no share
option has been granted by the Company.

The Company has applied the code provisions set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. Since its listing on the Stock Exchange, the
Company has complied with the code provisions of the Code, save for
the exceptions explained in the Corporate Governance Report in this
annual report.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this annual
report.

On 22 January 2015, the Company granted a total of 4,117,140 share
options to an Executive Director to subscribe for up to 4,117,140 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company at an
exercise price of HK$0.65 per share. The estimated fair value of the share
options granted on grant date is approximately HK$934,000.
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Report of the Directors

EEEWE

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 have been
audited by the Company’s auditors, RSM Nelson Wheeler (who shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting).

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Cheng Han Ngok Steve
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2015
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RSM

Audit - Tax - Advisory

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

TELEFIELD INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

—_—

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Telefield
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to 182, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2014, and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEEmIR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 EHZ—-Z—N&E+—-A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—F-nmFE  —T=F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt F#&xT FHT
Revenue A 7 1,832,867 1,825,542
Cost of goods sold SHE A (1,484,356)  (1,452,278)
Gross profit EF 348,511 373,264
Other income H A 9 65,890 23,872
Selling and distribution expenses SHE kDR (161,722) (125,547)
Administrative expenses THEHR (189,141) (153,618)
Other operating expenses HteE & A (83,675) (66,988)
(Loss)/profit from operations s (FR) BR (20,137) 50,983
Finance costs BB KA 10 (15,873) (13,300)
Share of profit/(loss) of associates ShEE R (BE) 2 (129)
Share of loss of a joint venture Nih—HEEETEEE (1,433) y
(Loss)/profit before tax BBIAT (BE) R (37,441) 37,554
Income tax expense Fri3 R f 2 11 (4,832) (6,140)
(Loss)/profit for the year EE (BRB) 57 12 (42,273) 31,414
Attributable to: DU % 75 FE4d

Owners of the Company PiN/NCIEZZEWN 15 577 28,566
Non-controlling interests IR (42,850) 2,848
(42,273) 31,414

Earnings per share SRER 17
Basic (HK cents) AR GEAD 0.14 6.94
Diluted (HK cents) e OB N/A RERH  N/ATEA
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

GeBEREMEERER

—mE+—A=t—BLLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE - =

2014 2013
—E-MmEF —ZE—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt FE&T FHET
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BB 5R (42,273) 31,414
Other comprehensive income, Hith 2w - HBRFE -
net of tax:
Items that will not be reclassified to T EEH T EE BB -
profit or loss:
(Loss)/gain on property revaluation MESHE (BB e 18 (600) 1,000
Deferred tax changes from loss/gain on %%Eﬁ)@ﬂé/ﬂﬁlﬁéﬁ’\]
property revaluation FEIER I E D) 38 99 (165)
(501) 835
Items that may be reclassified to AfEH S EE B R B
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating BMEBINETERE X =58
foreign operations 1,481 3,941
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEWE - NKRBIE
for the year, net of tax 980 4,776
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHEKFALEE (41,293) 36,190
Attributable to: LU % 75 FEh
Owners of the Company RARHEB A (600) 33,422
Non-controlling interests eI i (40,693) 2,768
(41,293) 36,190

54  Telefield International (Holdings) Limited F B2 #2345 iR A 5 Annual Report 3§ 2014



Non-current assets

Fixed assets

Prepaid lease payments
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Investments in associates
Investment in a joint venture
Available-for-sale financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories
Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Derivative financial assets

Amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary

Current tax assets

Bank and cash balances

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Accruals and other payables

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Bank borrowings

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

License fee payable

Derivative financial liabilities

Product warranty provisions

Current tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

As at 31 December 2014
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Note
iz

18
19
20
21
23
24
25
38

26
27

29

30

31

32
33

34
35

37
21(b)
29
36

2014
—g-mE
HK$’000
it

105,050
7,001
3,471

43,132
2,403
134

12,221
173,412

290,143
315,648
116,236

4,824

1,257
4,822
185,752

918,682

280,502
266,247

1,798
117,075

3,428
9,963
82
21,885
5,222

706,202
212,480
385,892

R-F—WE+—HA=+—H

2013
—E—=%F
HK$'000
FHET

76,703

8,311
55,425

292,956
420,770
94,029

2,454
1,143
183,138

994,490

318,240
229,291

4,203
111,813

3,476
6,867
6,119
19,343
5,128

704,480
290,010
441,333



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e ISR R

As at 31 December 2014 HR—-Z—

ME+—A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mF —EF—=
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
Hiq FET FHT
Non-current liabilities FkRBERE
Financial liabilities at fair value RATEFAB=NERARE
through profit or loss 37 646 9,929
License fee payable R IR 3R 21(b) 16,474 19,777
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFRIES R 38 17,225 21,237
34,345 50,943
NET ASSETS BEFE 351,547 390,390
Capital and reserves EAXRf#HE
Share capital [N 39 4,117 4,117
Reserves G 40 365,639 373,677
Equity attributable to owners RATHB AEGER
of the Company 369,756 377,794
Non-controlling interests FJEFE IR = (18,209) 12,596
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 351,547 390,390

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2015

Cheng Han Ngok Steve

EZE

Director
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Non-current assets

Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Bank and cash balances
Current tax assets

Current liabilities

Accruals and other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Current tax liabilities

Net current assets

NET ASSETS
Capital and reserves

Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

As at 31 December 2014 WB-_Z—MNFE+—-A=+—H

2014
—E—F
Note HK$’°000
Bt FHT

ERBEE
RSB R AEKE 22 3,171

REEE
JFE U B BB A B FRIE 22 125,713
FERFE - e RE A EWEIE 28 145
RIT MR & 48k 31 5,728
BNHATR I8 & B -
131,586

REEE
TEIRE A R H A e 5B 33 2,248
AN ENGIE S 22 1,192
BNEgFIE B & 97
3,537
REEEFE 128,049
EERE 131,220

BRRHE
& A 39 4,117
b 40(b) 127,103
EEBE 131,220

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2015

2013
—E—=F
HK$’000
T

3,171

131,771

2,622
49

134,342

2,133
210

2,343
131,999
135,170

4,117
131,063

135,170

BEEen_T-hF=A-+tH#tAE

Cheng Han Ngok Steve Poon Ka Lee Barry

BB 187 58 ERF
EZE EZE
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Gy y Lk

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE-Z—WNE+-A=1+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Equity

EXNGE N
Foreign
Share currency Property Non-
Share  premium Merger  translation  revaluation ~ Contributed Statutory Capital Retained Proposed controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve  profits  dividend Total interests equity
(note 39)  (note 40(c)fj) (note 40(c)(ii)  (note 40(c)fii))  (note 40(c)v)  (note 40(c)(v))  (note 40(c)(vi))  (note 40(c)(vi)
BE  RORER aitRE EXfE NEERRRE B EERE BAEE  REER RERE &t FEREE ESEE
(Wiits9)  (Wataoel) (Wisoeny) (Waoohn) (Wioem)  (Wioew)  (Boom)  (FE4oem)
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000
Thx Thn Tin TR Fhr Thn Tin Tén ThEr  TEx Thr  TEn T
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=%-A-A 4117 115,508 317 16,179 16,231 18,298 1,405 (6,789) 184,668 8234 361,022 2,759 363,781
Total comprehensive income ~ EE2AMNGAR
for the year - - - 4,021 835 - - - 28566 - 342 2,768 36,190
Acqisition of shares in a ﬁ?H’“H&H&?W%
non-wholly owned subsidiary 2 EHBAF
from non-controling b0} (/7/‘347&))
shareolders (note 41() = = = = = = = (2,240) = - Ry 2% )
Transfers Er - - - - - - 255 = (255) o = = =
Acquisition of subsidiaries KRB
(note 41(c) and (d)) (HE410k ) - - - - - - - - - - - 1,066 1,066
Contributions from SHERRRLE
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - 3,768 3,768
2012 final dividend paid (note 16) B3 =E——FKH
®e (W) = = = = = = = = - (8234 (823 = (8.234)
2013 interim dividend paid Exfi-E-=594
(note 16) e (Hi#6) = = = - - - - - @17 - 6179 - 179)
2013 proposed final BEFH-F-=F%%
dividend (note 16) RE (Hitte) - - - - - - - - (10293 10293 - - -
At 31 December 2013 RZ%E-Z%
+-A=+-A 4117 115,508 3171 20,200 17,066 18,298 1,660 (9,029 196510 10,208 377,794 12,696 390,390
At 1 January 2014 R=F-m5-A-R 4117 115,508 3171 20,200 17,066 18,208 1,660 (9,029) 196,510 10,208 377,794 1259 390,390
Total comprehensive income ~~ 2 ANHEE
for the year o = S (676) (501) o S = 577 o (600) (40,693 (41,209
Acqisition of shares in the ﬁiFﬂxHﬁW@
non-wholly owned subsidiaries ~ F2EHBA
from non-controlling i (ﬂ/fﬁﬁ(&)ﬂ/ﬂ)
shareholders (note 41(g) and (f) - - - - - - - 2,655 - - 2,655 (2,655) -
Acquisition of subsiciaries WERBAA
(note 41(2) and (b) (Ki#416)k ) o o = = o o S = S o - 13200 13209
Deemed disposal of partial EEHENBAR
interests in subsidlaries BrfEs
(note 41(g), (1), ) (a1 1)) - - - - - - - 6,376 S - 6376 274 6,650
Dividend paid to non-controling KB AR EER
shareholders by a subsidary ~ REZIRE - - - - - - - - - - - (940) (940)
Transfer 2% - - - - - - 445 - (445) - - - -
2013 final dividend paid (note 16) EXH=F—=FKH
e (Hit1e) - - - - - - - - - (10,293) (10,208 - (10,293
2014 interim dvidend paid BXf=E-mERE
(note 16) ke (Hit6) - - - - - - - - (6176) - (6176 - (6,176)
2014 proposed final dvidend ~ FEH=F-MEFH
(note 16) ke (Wit1s) - - - - - - - - (6176 6,176 = = =
At 31 December 2014 RZE-WE
T-A=t1-A 4117 115,508 3171 19,524 16,565 18,208 2,105 2 184290 6,176 369,756  (18,209) 351,547
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

2014 2013
—B-QmNE —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EZBHERERE
(Loss)/profit before tax BER (BER) 5 (37,441) 37,554
Adjustments for: FEE
Allowance for receivables, net RS TR I B F R 2,291 231
Allowance on inventories, net GERE TS (10,180) 4,402
Amortisation of intangible assets A 13,632 14,271
Depreciation e 21,874 19,353
Share of (profit)/loss of an associate Sh—EEE AR Cafl) EiE (2 129
Share of loss of a joint venture Dh—EEETEEE 1,433 =
(Gain)/loss on financial liabilities at fair value BAFEFABRNERAEZ
through profit or loss AFE (W) B (6,036) 1,661
(Gain)/loss on derivative assets/liabilities TTEBE/BfE (K& B8 (9,122) 5,236
Bad debt written off in other receivables PR E At R R IE M S IR BR 22,212 =
Finance costs =YD 15,873 13,300
Impairment loss on goodwill AR EEE 4,840 4,302
Impairment loss on amount due from e — R B & R R R IB R E B 18
an associate 6,048 4,165
Discount on acquisition iR (1,918) (915)
Bank interest income SRITF B HA (1,061) (1,025)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets HEEEEE (&) EE (4) 3,901
Provision on product warranty EmRARE 14,370 12,104
Operating profit before working capital changes EEESBERLEE T 36,809 118,669
Payment of contingent considerations (note 37) SIHARE (H7737) (2,211) (7,748)
Payment of license fee payables FFETRE FE ST R (5,377) =
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL (Em) 17,310 (25,160)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables FEWE ZERFOR LD, (350) 105,443 (220,240)
Increase in prepaid lease payments AT E S IEE N (7,001) =
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TERTFE -~ e K H A FE U IE S
other receivables (44,355) (41,627)
Increase in amount due from associates JrE LA B 5 B SRR 1 (5,571) =
Increase in amount due from a joint venture FEUL— & & 1 S FRIEIE hN (17) =
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from a UG — & B B8 A B — & FETE AR A ER
non-controlling shareholder of subsidiary FRIERE A, (HEhn) 1,197 (2,454)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FERE SRR CRd) i (37,753) 189,329
Increase in accruals and other payables TEIR B A I H b < FRIBAE AN 31,934 34,422
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to JE AT BT BB R R FEFE AR AR 3R
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries ;B CRd) (2,405) 3,357
Decrease in product warranty provisions 7 o iR R B AR (9,967) (10,668)
Cash generated from operations LGRS 78,036 37,880
Income tax paid BXATATSH (14,778) (7,654)
Finance costs paid BT RE KA (10,704) (9,020)
Net cash generated from operating activities LRI S TR 52,554 21,206
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 41(a), (b))
Acquisition of non-controlling interests
Interest received
Purchases of fixed assets
Investments in associates
Loan to an associate
Investment in a joint venture
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Net payments for settlement of

derivative assets/liabilities

Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Bank loans raised

Repayment of bank loans

Net import/export loans raised

Contributions from non-controlling
shareholders (note 41(h), (i)

Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders

Dividend paid to owners to the companies

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Bank and cash balances (note 317)

REFDHRERE

WIEHI B AR (AfiF41(@) ~ (b))
Y i SF PR i e 2

EYFE

BEETEE
REEE R AR E

Al — R A RIIR L E R
R—EEELENERE
HEBlE B EMSRIA
RETHEBE ABERHER

RERBTAREIFE
MEEFBHRERE

EERRTER

BERITER

BESE HOBEFRFE
FREBRBRHIE (Aat41m) - ()

A SEFR AR AR S AN A B
FAREEASIRE

MEERDY (A /FERLFHE

RERREEEWRNFR

EXEBYE

FORERBEEEY

FREERREEEY

RERREEEUON

RITMR SRR (Hi231)
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2014
—E-mE
HK$’000
FHx

(11,510)
(614)
1,061
(26,157)
(49)
(2,829)
(1,550)

(1,739)
(43,387)

80,655
(87,402)
12,009

6,650
(940)
(16,469)

(5,497)

3,670

(1,056)

183,138

185,752

185,752

2013
—E—=4F
HK$’000
T

671

1,025
(14,2606)
(129)
(4,165)

227

(7,254)
(23,891)

61,857
(45,960)
15,084

3,768

(14,410)

21,239

18,554

2,776

161,808

183,138

183,138



For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liabilities on
18 May 2010. The address of its registered office is Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands and principal place of business is Units 609-610, 6/F, Bio-
Informatics Centre, No.2 Science Park West Avenue, Hong Kong
Science Park, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Dragon Fortune
International Limited (“Dragon Fortune”), a company incorporated
in Hong Kong, is the ultimate parent and Mr. Cheng Han Ngok,
Steve, is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 January 2014. HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

(@)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The following standards have been adopted by the Group
for the first time for the financial year beginning 1 January
2014:

This amendment clarifies that the right of set-off must not
be contingent on a future event. It must also be legally
enforceable for all counterparties in the normal course of
business, as well as in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy. The amendment also considers settlement
mechanisms. The amendment did not have a significant
effect on the Group financial statements.

The amendments reduce the circumstances in which the
recoverable amount of assets or cash-generating units is
required to be disclosed, clarify the disclosures required,
and introduce an explicit requirement to disclose the
discount rate used in determining impairment (or reversals)
where recoverable amount based on fair value less costs of
disposal is determined using a present value technique. The
amendments do not have an impact on these consolidated
financial statements as the recoverable amounts of assets
or cash-generating units have been determined on the basis
of their value in use.

The Interpretation provides guidance on when a liability
to pay a levy imposed by a government should be
recognised. The amendments do not have an impact on
these consolidated financial statements as the Group is not
currently subjected to significant levies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z —Z—

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
REQUIREMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives
and continuation of hedge accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide
discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a

relief from

derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets certain
criteria. The amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as the Group has not novated any of
its derivatives.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 (Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

This amendment clarifies the definitions of “vesting
condition” and “market condition” and adds definitions
or “performance condition” and “service condition”. The
amendment is applicable prospectively to share-based
payment transactions for which the grant date is on or after
1 July 2014 and had no effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 (Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

This amendment, applicable prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after
1 July 2014, requires any contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability (i.e. non-equity) to be
measured at fair value at each reporting date with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. It had no effect on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

(@)

(b)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

This amendment to the standard’s basis for conclusions
only clarifies that the ability to measure certain short-term
receivables and payables on an undiscounted basis is
retained.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2014. The directors
anticipate that the new and revised HKFRSs will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements when they
become effective. The Group is in the process of assessing,
where applicable, the potential effect of all new and revised
HKFRSs that will be effective in future periods but is not
yet in a position to state whether these new and revised
HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND

REQUIREMENTS (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

List of new and revised HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective:
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to
HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to

HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Financial Instruments’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?®
Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation®
Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture?®

Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle®

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle*

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,

with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on

or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,
with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
earlier application permitted.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
which for this financial year and the comparative period continue
to be those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and saving arrangements
for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to
87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise
in the accounting policies below (e.g. land and buildings, derivative
financial assets/liabilities, financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE-Z—NE&+-A=1+—HItFE

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs

requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also

requires management to exercise its judgement in the process

of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving

a higher degree of judgements or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of

these financial statements are set out below.

(@)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has existing rights that
give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement
of changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between the
non-controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

Business combination (other than under
common control) and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at
the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued, liabilities incurred and any contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and
the services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over
the Company’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
Any excess of the Company’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum of the
consideration transferred is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is
attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value
is added to the sum of the consideration transferred in a
business combination to calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair value of
the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—Z—

(b)

(c)

ME+—A=+—RIFE

Business combination (other than under
common control) and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUSs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level. Goodwill impairment reviews
are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and
is not subsequently reversed.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity
but is not control or joint control over those policies. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by other entities, are considered when
assessing whether the Group has significant influence. In
assessing whether a potential voting right contributes to
significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial
ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.
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(c)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE-Z—NE&+-A=1+—HItFE

Associates (Continued)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested for
impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and
its share of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the
Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only
after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—Z—

(c)

(d)

ME+—A=+—RIFE

Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results
in a loss of significant influence represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
associate and (i) the Group’s entire carrying amount of that
associate (including goodwill) and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture, the
Group continues to apply the equity method and does not
remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. Relevant
activities are activities that significantly affect the returns of
the arrangement. When assessing joint control, the Group
considers its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties. A potential voting right
is considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.
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(d)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE-Z—NE&+-A=1+—HItFE

Joint arrangements (Continued)

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint
venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures.

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the joint venture in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested for
impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

(d)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

The Group’s share of a joint venture’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss, and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its
interest in the joint venture, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture. If the joint venture subsequently
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture that
results in a loss of joint control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
joint venture and (i) the Group’s entire carrying amount
of that joint venture (including goodwill) and any related
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate, the Group continues to apply the equity method
and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of joint ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE-Z—NE&+-A=1+—HItFE

Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of
each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting
from this translation policy are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—Z—

(e)

ME+—A=+—RIFE

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement

of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency

translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part
of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss

on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at

the closing rate.
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(f)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

Fixed assets

Land and buildings are initially recognised at cost. Freehold
land is subsequently carried at the revalued amount less
accumulated impairment losses. Leasehold land and
buildings are subsequently carried at the revalued amounts
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Revaluation increases of land and building are
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that the increases
reverse revaluation decreases of the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss. All other revaluation increases
are credited to such property revaluation reserve as other
comprehensive income. Revaluation decreases that offset
previous revaluation increases of the same asset remaining
in the property revaluation reserve are charged against
the property revaluation reserve as other comprehensive
income. All other decreases are recognised in profit or loss.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued land and
buildings, the attributable revaluation increases remaining
in the property revaluation reserve is transferred directly to
retained profits.

All other fixed assets are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

(f)

(9)

Fixed assets (Continued)

Depreciation of fixed assets is calculated at rates sufficient
to write off their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Freehold land Nil

Leasehold land and buildings 4%

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term
or 20% - 25%

Plant, machinery, 10% - 25%

moulds and tools

10% - 20%

18% — 33"/s%

Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Trademarks are measured initially at fair value upon business
combination and are assessed to have indefinite useful lives.
No amortisation is charged to profit or loss. Useful lives are
reviewed during each reporting period to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to support an indefinite
useful life assessment for the trademarks. If they do not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

Intangible assets (Continued)

License rights, customer relationship, patents and
technologies are measured initially at fair value upon
business combination or acquisition date and amortised
on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives less
impairment losses. Useful lives of license rights, customer
relationship, patents and technologies are as follows:

License rights Over the license period

Customer relationship 3 - 6 years
Patents 4 years
Technologies 3 years

The useful lives of customer relationship, patents and
technologies were estimated by the Company’s management
team upon business combination, based on their expected
successful rate in retaining the acquirees’ customers, and
the prevailing general practice in the industry in estimating
the expected useful life of customer relationship acquired
in business combination.

Leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

(h)

(i)

Leases (Continued)

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease
is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the
leased asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception
of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the statement of financial position as finance
lease payable. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated
to each period during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the
same as owned assets.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. An internally
generated intangible asset arising from the Group’s product
development activity is recognised only if all of the following
conditions are met:

- An asset is created that can be identified (such as

software and new processes);

- It is probable that the asset created will generate

future economic benefits; and

- The development cost of the asset can be measured

reliably.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE-Z—NE&+-A=1+—HItFE

Research and development expenditure
(Continued)

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
basis. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead expenditure, and
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—Z—

(k)

U

ME+—A=+—RIFE

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an investment
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
investment within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Investments are classified as either financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial
assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are either investments classified as held for trading
or designated as at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition. These investments
are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

() Investments (Continued) n w&EGE

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are not classified as loans and
other receivables, held-to-maturity investments or
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of these investments
are recognised in other comprehensive income,
and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve, until the investments are disposed of or
there is objective evidence that the investments
are impaired, at which time the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified from equity to profit or
loss. Interest calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Instruments in equity institutions that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are
measured at cost less impairment losses.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for
equity investments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are not subsequently reversed
through profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss for debt instruments classified as
available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
reversed and recognised in profit or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
The amount of the allowance is the difference between
the receivables’ carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of
the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the
receivables’ recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the
receivables at the date the impairment is reversed shall not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held-for-trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held-for-
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held-for-trading and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—Z—

(s)

(®)

(u)

ME+—A=+—RIFE

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised and subsequently
measured at fair value.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that do not qualify
for hedge accounting are recognised in profit or loss as
they arise.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

Management fee income is recognised when the service
is rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight line basis over
the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE-Z—NE&+-A=1+—HItFE

Employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

(w)

(x)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Annual Report 3} 2014

(w)

(x)

BEKA
ERSRAERBE(AIRE K
R RHEA IR AERR] Mgt
EZEE)ZWE BERtEL
EERANEFZFEELZBARA
BAME - EERFEEAR L EHE
IRAERGT R ERL -
ERENBFREREE 2 XA
RIEREREMRRZIERA R
AIREBEAR Z (BB AR -

—RIEBABRSANERASER
BE  AIRFEAZIEERATER
RABAMERGFAEZREERSZ
FEBE - EMERERRZH
BAKEREERE 2 EERAN
BYHE(RESAEREEZY
BEERRSN) -

FrE RS ERARELEHFENE
TR o

BiIE

P Bt AV EARTR R RO IR TR 2 48
LI

B RN IRTIZ F E R )
AHE o AEMMFE 2 BRI K EH
B2 WA SRR B R ATE R
PRMERIRIIRZ TR E - BUER
i M BB R TERR 2 i M T E o AR
SEEMPRARRENREH
RATE B LR 2 B RET

= o
A



(x)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—ZT—F+-A=+—HILFE

(x)

(v)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(if) has significant influence over the Group; or
(ifi) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company.

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 EHZE—Z

(y) Related parties (Continued)

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (Continued)

(i

(vii)

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

(@)

Impairment of assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life or that are not yet available for use are reviewed for
impairment annually and whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets — except derivative financial
instruments, deferred tax assets, investments, inventories
and receivables, of which the impairment policies are set out
in note 3(s), 3(x), 3(l), 3() and 3(m) respectively, to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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(@)

(aa)

(ab)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z —Z—

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Except for goodwill, where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statement when material.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

The Group determines that the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements.
Accordingly the entire lease of land and buildings is
classified as a finance lease and included under fixed
assets.

As stated in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements,
the titles of freehold land and buildings in India acquired
during the year were not transferred to the Group as at 31
December 2014. Despite the fact that the Group has not
obtained the relevant legal titles, the directors determined to
recognise these freehold land and buildings as fixed assets
on the grounds that they expect the transfer of legal titles
in future should have no major difficulties and the Group is
in substance controlling these freehold land and buildings.

Although the Group owns less than 50% of the equity
interest in STI Technology Limited, it is treated as subsidiary
because the Group is able to control the relevant activities
of STI Technology Limited as a result of the majority voting
right to direct its relevant activities.

The Group holds 50% of the voting rights of its joint venture.
The directors have determined that the Group has joint
control over this joint venture as under the contractual
agreements, it appears that unanimous consent is required
from all parties to the agreements for all relevant activities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

The Group’s joint arrangements are structured as limited
companies and provide the Group and the parties to the
agreements with rights to the net assets of the limited
companies under the arrangements. Therefore, the directors
have determined that these entities are classified as joint
ventures of the Group.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

The fair value of certain land and buildings, derivative
financial instruments and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss as set out in note 18, note 29 and
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements respectively
also involve valuation techniques. When applying valuation
techniques, various assumptions and generally accepted
methodologies were used to derive the fair values. Any
changes in these assumptions can significantly affect the
estimate of the fair value of the underlying assets and
liabilities.

Annual Report F%§ 2014

FE RIS =T BUR RUBA 52 ) i (48)

AEBENGELZBABRAFLA
IOl dce s A N SE TN
BNEREZRLYTHARRAT
BEFENEL

EEt AR R 2 EZRIR

R IRE B LR R £ B RR K Mol
SRR E FERR(Y T —MERF
ErAERBENREEEREARE
EAREM)TE T AT

WANERE B SRR M k18 ~ BT aE
29N MFESTRTEL - BT L R
F AR AREAFERA
BarepB8ENATESRE
BEDT - RERMGERTGE @ &
BTZEBERARAETER
B - BRAREMN TS B8
BEKBEBEZATEBEBENY
2



For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
fixed assets. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives and residual values
of fixed assets of similar nature and functions. The Group
will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives and
residual values are different to those previously estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of fixed assets as at 31 December
2014 was approximately HK$105,050,000 (2013:
HK$76,703,000).

The Group assesses annually whether fixed assets have any
indication of impairment in accordance with the accounting
policy. The recoverable amounts of fixed assets have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of judgement and estimates.
No impairment loss for fixed assets was made for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: nil).

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
amortisation for the Group’s intangible assets. The useful
live of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite, based on the expected usage and technical
obsolescence from the changes in the market demands
or services output from the assets. Intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised over their expected useful
economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for the
intangible assets with a finite useful life are reviewed by the
management at least at the end of each reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31
December 2014 was approximately HK$43,132,000 (2013:
HK$55,425,000).

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the
reporting period was approximately HK$3,471,000 after
an impairment loss of approximately HK$4,840,000 was
recognised during 2014. Details of the impairment loss
calculation are provided in note 20 to consolidated financial
statements.

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement
and estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventories and allowance
charge/write-back in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

As at 31 December 2014, accumulated allowance for

slow-moving inventories amounted to approximately
HK$28,473,000 (2013: HK$38,653,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of
the trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and/or the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairment arises where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectable. The identification of bad and doubtful debt
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact on the carrying value of the trade and
other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year in

which such estimate has been changed.

As at 31 December 2014, accumulated allowance for trade
receivables amounted to approximately HK$3,314,000

(2013: HK$1,023,000).

Product warranty provisions of the Group is recognised
based on past experience of level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present value as appropriate. Movement
of the product warranty provisions during the year is set out
in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amount of product warranty provisions as at 31
December 2014 was approximately HK$21,885,000 (2013:

HK$19,343,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

One of the Group’s subsidiary in Germany are engaged
in trading of computer accessories and tablet PCs, and
copyright fees were unilaterally announced by a copyright
collecting agency on some of the subsidiary’s products.
The management is of the opinion that such amount
of copyright fees are excessive hence only recognised
certain percentage of the copyright fees as provision after
consulting legal adviser.

The management expects it would take a long period of
negotiation and/or legal proceedings between the copyright
collecting agency and the computer industry to finalise
the amount of copyright fees. The information usually
required by HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” is not disclosed on the grounds that it
can be expected to prejudice seriously the outcome of the
negotiation and/or legal proceedings.

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which without tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made. During the
year, approximately HK$4,832,000 (2013: HK$6,140,000)
of income tax was charged to profit or loss based on the
estimated (loss)/profit from continuing operations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as part of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in United States dollar, Euro,
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar.

The following tables detail the Group’s major exposure
at the end of reporting period to foreign currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in
respective foreign currencies. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong
dollar translated using the spot rates at the end of reporting
period.

AEBEXRBEBAZSEMBGRR « INE
Rk - EERR - RBESERLMEE
B AEENEREARERAEEINE
BTSRRI K B PR S AN S B
R BNEETNEE -

(a) INEREER

AEBFTAZINERR - RERHE
MOEBRS  BEERBEIEN
X7 BT ARBKBTTIIE -

TRABASER RS HAARAD M
RIZAARINEIIENEESRBEM
EENERINER - SL25IE &Y
MmE @ AR RREEHARAGE
KRB BABTTIIR ©

2014 2013
—E-F —ET-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Denominated in United States dollar HUERTIE

Trade receivables FEUNE FEE X 185,245 187,184
Deposits and other receivables & & H b fE WEKIE 3,928 4,938
Bank and cash balances RIT IR S sk 52,100 51,483
Trade payables JEFTE S BRI (46,860) (68,723)
Accruals and other payables TER B A N E A e 508 (29,005) (28,921)
Bank borrowings RITEE (27,316) (23,091)
Amounts due (to)/from group companies (FER),/ R E B A T ZIE (35,302) 49,337
Total 5T 102,790 182,207

Denominated in Renminbi RAR®SE
Trade receivables FEWE 5 IR 71 4,315
Deposits and other receivables e M E b I kT8 1,650 1,233
Bank and cash balances RTINS 58,756 53,953
Trade payables JERE S BRI (10,547) (9,684)
Accruals and other payables TEIR B A I b FE 1 5RIR (8,992) (704)
Amounts due to group companies FEEE AT RIA (4,066) (20,266)
Total 5T 36,872 28,847
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. HMBEREEE)
(@) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (a) SRR (&)
2014 2013
e L =
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Denominated in Euro D& eylE
Trade receivables FEUE 5 8RR = =
Deposits and other receivables e RHA R FIE 96 48
Bank and cash balances IRIT R E8 1,856 8,788
Trade payables JERE SRR (788) (725)
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A L H A FE A FR0R - (179)
Amounts due from group companies EREBR QN RIZHIE 57,422 63,712
Total HEt 58,586 71,644
Denominated in Hong Kong dollar E T 5IE
Deposits and other receivables e kHA I GIE = 38
Bank and cash balances IRITRIB 3,992 570
Accruals and other payables TEIRE B R E A IR (280) (284)
Amounts due from group companies FEWE BN B 508 36,777 56,574
Total et 40,489 56,898
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

(@)

Foreign currency risk (Continued) (a) HhEEmPE(48)
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in RER A Efh R e B S s 5 Tt -
the Group’s (loss)/profit for the year and equity that would REBRREBRAFARIETZRR
have been arisen if foreign exchange rates to which the HIE RN R BAR a0 G &d) - K&
Group has significant exposure at the end of reporting BEEE(EBB) H#h LR 8
period had changed at those dates, assuming all other risk BN (LN NRATR ¢
variables remained constant.
2014 20183
—E-0F —E—=F
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in foreign
Foreign currency/ exchange exchange
functional currency SR IhREE M rates  HK$’000 rates HK$’000
E=x e 2
F. (k%) FHEx A FHET
United States dollar/ ETTLH 1,185 1% 1,957
Hong Kong dollar BT (1,185) (1% (1,957)
Renminbi/ AREBH, (180) 5% (727)
Hong Kong dollar BT 180 (5)% 727
Euro/ LT 5 5,463 10% 6,538
Hong Kong dollar BT (5,463) (10)% (6,538)

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31
December 2013, the Group has used derivative financial
instruments to mitigate its risks associated with foreign
currency fluctuations. The use of financial derivatives has
been closely monitored by directors of the Company. The
Group would choose financial institutions with high credit
rating as counter party when using derivative financial
instruments. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of other foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the bank and cash balances, trade
and other receivables derivate financial assets and amount
due from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
included in the statement of financial position represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
the Group’s financial assets.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk, as the
Group’s largest three debtors account for 35% (2013: 34%)
of trade receivables as at 31 December 2014.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. Amount due
from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary is closely
monitored by the directors.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances, derivative
financial assets are limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

In order to minimise credit risk, the directors have delegated
a team to be responsible for the determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures.
In addition, the directors review the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts. In
this regard, the directors consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE
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(c) Liquidity risk (c)
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted rEEREBENSAI MR

cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: MEEAR ST
Less than Between Between
1 year and 1and 2 2and 5 Over
on demand years years 5 years Total
1FERT
RARHE N ¥
EXRE 122F 2Z5F HB5F st
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET THET THT TEx THT
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—0OE
+=R=+-H
Trade payables ERNE SRR 280,502 - - - 280,502
Accruals and other payables TBIRER R EAM
FERTRIR 266,247 - - - 266,247
Amounts due to NN
non-controlling shareholders FEIE IR AR R 3R
of subsidiaries 1,798 - - - 1,798
Bank borrowings RITHEE 117,409 - - - 117,409
Financial liabilities at fair BRATEFA
value through profit or loss BRENLRAE 3,428 646 - - 4,074
Derivative financial liabilities TEERARE 82 - - - 82
License fee payable BT REMET R 11,287 8,913 18,988 - 39,188
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 EHZ—-Z—N&E+—-A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. BXEREE(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REBEZREB(E)
Less than Between Between
1 year and 1and 2 2 and 5 Over
on demand years years 5 years Total
1ELAT
BRI NF NF
EREF 1226 2E5F HiB5F st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FHET FAET FHET
At 31 December 2013 R-B—=F
+=-A=
Trade payables e B SRR 318,240 = = = 318,240
Accruals and other payables HEiRBAREAM
JERFRIE 208,338 - - - 208,338
Amounts due to LIENE
non-controlling shareholders ES ST O]
of subsidiaries 4,203 - - - 4,208
Bank borrowings RITEE 112,165 = = = 112,165
Financial liabilities at fair BRAFERA
value through profit or loss BEameraE 3,549 8,428 2,023 = 14,000
Derivative financial liabilities TEERAE 6,119 = = = 6,119
License fee payable KT 8,189 8,525 27,900 = 44,614
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE - =
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. Rk ERE (&)
(d) Interest rate risk (d) FI=Epks
The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its REBFAZERITFRRIRITE
bank deposits and bank borrowings. These deposits and ENFXRAR - 2EFRREER
borrowings bear interests at variable rates varied with the FEFIEGHE - FIRZERTRAM
then prevailing market condition. E °
At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a general RZZE—NF+=ZA=+—H0" &
increase/(decrease) of 100 basis points in interest rates, FEHMEEERTENBERT
with all other variables held constant, would have increased/ et FIE=EE FA /(FF%)1001E
(decreased) the Group’s loss for the year and retained AL AEENFEBERRE S
profits as follows: e CR)AT -
2014 2013
Increase/(decrease) in interest rates FEREH (THE) —E-MF —E2—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
100 basis points 10052, 174 347
(100) basis points (100)E 24 (174) (347)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the impact on the
Group’s loss for the year and equity that would have arisen
assuming that there is an annualised impact on interest
income and expense by a change in interest rates. The
analysis has been performed on the same basis throughout
the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 (e) R+=-—BA=+—HHSHEIT
December B35
2014 2013
—E-IF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Financial assets: SREE:
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABENEHEE
profit or loss:
Held for trading HIEEEB 4,824 -
Loans and receivables (including cash BEXNERZE (BERE M
and cash equivalents): ReEEY)
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BRI 315,648 420,770
Deposits and other receivables Ze M HE M EWGRIE 90,266 54,241
Amount due from an associate, net FEU — PRI B & A B FIRE R 2,352 =
Amount due from a non-controlling R —RH B AR —%&
shareholder of a subsidiary JEE IR R FRIE 1,257 2,454
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S 185,752 183,138
600,099 660,603
Financial liabilities: TRAE:
Financial liabilities at fair value through BAFEFAEBZNSHEE
profit or loss:
Designated as such upon initial recognition R ¥ # R IEEE 4,074 13,405
Held for trading BIEEE 82 6,119
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: RBHEAATIENERALE
Trade payables FEE SRR 280,502 318,240
Accruals and other payables TEIR & F R H b B 58 241,178 208,338
Amounts due to non-controlling FEATIY B~ B FE 1= IR AR 3R 518
shareholders of subsidiaries 1,798 4,203
Bank borrowings RITEE 117,075 111,813
License fee payable FERT R K 26,437 26,644
671,146 688,762
()  Fair values (fl 2FHE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and REBRGEVBERARAESH
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement BERSHABENREERLRE
of financial position approximate their respective fair values. R AFERS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

(9)

Financial assets and financial liabilities

subject to offsetting

The Group has legally enforceable right to set off certain
other receivables and trade payables arising from the same
suppliers and the Group intends to settle these balances on
a net basis. The Group did not have similar offsetting as at
31 December 2013.

(9)

AFRENEHEER SR
=N
REBER A AR HIBMITREFE
HABRMEEREE 2B T HMER
FIREENB SRR - ANEER S
RRFHEEREZSEG - ~A5EH
N_B—=F+_-_A=+—HIE
AR -

Net amounts of

As at 31 December 2014

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial assets/

Carrying amounts
of associated
financial assets/
(liabilities) set off
in the consolidated
statement of
financial position

financial assets/
(liabilities)
presented in the
consolidated
statement of
financial position

R-Z-m&E+=B=1+-H BE /(Af) A%
HK$’000

THET

Other receivables Hib s 70,433
Trade payables JEFTE 5B (312,593)

Annual Report 3} 2014

REGEHEMRRERA REGEHERRERA
BHzHBEsREE Bz emEE/
(BB 2KREE (BfE) 258
HK$’000 HK$’000

TEx THEx

(32,091) 38,342

32,091 (280,502)



(h)

Transfers of financial assets

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

The following were the Group’s financial assets as at 31

December 2014 and 2013 that were transferred to banks

by discounting those receivables on a full recourse basis.

As the Group has not transferred the significant risks

and rewards relating to these receivables, it continues

to recognise the full carrying amount of the receivables

and has recognised the cash received on the transfer as

bank loan (note 35). These financial assets are carried at

amortised cost in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position.

Carrying amount of transferred assets
Carrying amount of associated liabilities

Net position

EEREECKREE
MR EZREE

T

TR
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(h)

discounted to
banks with full

TR E 2B
TXAR-_E—ROFEER-_F—=F
T-A=+—HAKEERMEED
BBRME 2 EEREEERIRZ
FRWGIRMBE TIRTT - ARA
SEYEERERZERIGE L
BEARER MBI - AR B
R FRYFR 2 = #REE - i
R W R R RIRITE
H(MIES5) - RE S B EREH
RARASRE 2 7 A MR KA
5I8R

2014 2013
—E—MF —ET—=%F
Trade Trade

receivables receivables
discounted to

banks with full

recourse recourse
MEZXEERE WHNEZEERE
BRI FRTZ BRIR FERT1T
FEWE 5 R FEUE SR
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET THET

2,515 1,043

(2,012) (765)

503 278



For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

(h)

Transfers of financial assets (Continued)

A subsidiary of the Group has transferred certain trade
receivables to an oversea bank for financing. In the
opinion of the directors, the subsidiary of the Group has
transferred substantially all the risk and rewards relating
to those factored trade receivables. Accordingly, the
Group has derecognised the full carrying amounts of such
factored trade receivables. As at 31 December 2014,
the derecognised trade receivable under such factoring
arrangement is approximately HK$106,981,000 (2013:
HK$118,245,000), and an amount of approximately
HK$47,139,000 (2013: HK$22,752,000), being the fund
retained by the factoring bank (“Factoring retainer”) for
any potential trading deductions by customers, will be
received by the Group when the factored trade receivables
are fully settled by respective customers. In addition, the
Group also provide a corporate guarantee of approximately
HK$18,863,000 (2013: HK$21,357,000) to indemnify the
bank for any further trading deductions not covered by
the fund retained. As at 31 December 2014, the maximum
exposure to loss from the Group’s continuing involvement
in respect at these factored trade receivables was of
approximately HK$66,002,000 (2013: HK$44,109,000).
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(h)

TREEER(E)
REEZ—FRBARIER—fE
SMRITERCE TRRWE 5 R ER
BER® - BERA  AEE KB
NRAEEBRERRAARKE S
RRBEZ BRI ER&KER -
Hit - AEBRRIERRZERER
B E SRR 2 2 EREE -
RNR-ZE—ME+=-A=+—H" 2
RIMTERRRRBAR TR EKE
5 BR 3 #9106,981,000/8 T ( = &
—Z4F : 118,245,000 7C) * K&
BRBLAERT TR AT BB R 2 (B 7]
BZERMRBzES ([REMB
REBES])#47,139,00078 T (=
T— =1 : 22,752,000 T ) # M
AEBREARFEEHAEBTRR
BhiE FE UL 5 AR SREFURER © St -
REETGHREBE S RRE 2 M
E—PHRZESRFTIREQR
£{R#718,863,0008 L (=T —=
F ¢ 21,857,000 7T) © AEIFZIR
THETHEE - RN_Z—WE+=A
=1+—H AEEFEL2HEZER
REUABENE SRR EENTA
518 B B /5 4966,002,00078 7T ( =
T—=4F : 44,109,000/ 7T) °

IE



(h)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 EHZE—Z

Transfers of financial assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014

R-B-—OF+=-A=+—H

Type of continuing involvement

Factoring retainer
Corporate guarantee

Total

As at 31 December 2013

RZE—=F+=-A=+—H

Type of continuing involvement

Factoring retainer
Corporate guarantee

Total

RS RER
ERERBREAS
AAER

it

B S R
ERERAREES
AAER

it
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(h) SEMEEERGE)

Carrying amount of
continuing
involvement in the
consolidated
statement of
financial position

FEZHERGRS

PR R A 2 BREE

HK$’000
TR

Other receivables

47,139
N/A B H
47,139

Carrying amount of
continuing
involvement in the
consolidated
statement of
financial position
BESENGS

Z 2R

MBBIRRERA 2 BREE

HK$’000
TAT

Other receivables

22,752
N/A N5 B

229162

Maximum
exposure
to loss

RABERRE
HK$’000
TERT

H {th & YRR

47,139
18,863

66,002

Maximum
exposure
to loss

RAEEER
HK$'000
THETT
Hofth & W R

22,752
21,357

44,109



For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The following disclosures of
fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises
into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure

fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

(@) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy: (a) DFESEREEOEE
2014: =y

Recurring fair value
measurements:

Fixed assets

Commercial units —
Hong Kong (note 18)

Freehold land and buildings
— India (note 18)

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss

— Derivative financial
assets — currency
options (note 29)

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss

— Derivative financial
liabilities — forward
contracts (note 29)

— Contingent/future

considerations (note 37)

BEEML - FE

—TESMEE

—TEERAE

Fair value measurements using:

AFEFTEFMANER :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E H2fE %£3E st

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$’000
TR TR TR TR

BRI AT ENE

KAEHE LI RBT

—HE (#/3£18)

B ER ABRZD

B ERABREN

—HR S RERE

- 23,400 - 23,400
- - 23,950 23,950
- 23,400 23,950 47,350
- 4,824 > 4,824
- 28,224 23,950 52,174
- (82) - (82)
- - (4,074) (4,074)
- (82) (4,074) (4,156)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6. AQFEFEE)

(@) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy: (a) DFEEER
(Continued) (48)

2013: —F=5F:

RBHWE

Fair value measurements using:

AFEFEMANER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
%1 FE2E F3E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FH&T FHET FHET
Recurring fair value BEEMAFETE
measurements:
Fixed assets EEEE
Commercial units — BN — BB
Hong Kong (note 18) (H1i#18) - 25,000 25,000
Financial liabilities TRAaE
Financial liabilities at fair WA EFT ABEN
value through profit or loss 4 gt & &
— Derivative financial —TEEmAaR
liabilities — currency — EES AR
options (note 29) (B1:£29) = (6,119) (6,119)
- Contingent/future — &R RKRE
considerations (note 37) (K1:£37) = = (13,405) (13,405)
Total gt - (6,119)  (13,405)  (19,524)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_-_ZT—NFE+_A=+—HILtFE

(b) Reconciliation of assets/(liabilities) measured (b) EHRNES };z’&$1EH+EE’J
at fair value based on level 3: ‘é‘?/(%{a TER

Financial assets/(liabilities) at fair value
through profit or loss

RATEFABENEREE /(BR)

RCA
business TrekStor Fargo
Freehold telephone  multimedia communications
land and system product product 2014
buildings  distribution  distribution distribution Total
- India business business business

KAERE RCA%7 TrekStor
THRET EFZS  SEBER  FargoEEER 2 -E-IE

- 0E PHEER PEER PHER agt
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TiEn T T T
1 January m—A—H - (2,211) (5,228) (5,966) (13,405)
Total gains recognised in profit NERRREZH
or loss (#) W@ - - 1,635 4,401 6,036
Purchase BE 23,950 - - - 23,950
Settlements £E - 2,211 - 614 2,825
Exchange differences ERER - - 470 - 470
At 31 December W+=RA=1+—H 23,950 - (3,123) (951) 19,876
(#) Include gains for financial HEERREEREEN
liabilities held at end of SRAGMNKE
reporting period - - 1,635 4,401 6,036
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE-Z—WNE+-A=1+—HItFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6. ATEFEE)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities measured at fair (b) EHERNFEIBRAFETER
value based on level 3: (Continued) BEYER : (8)

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

BOHESABRRZNEBAR

RCA
business TrekStor Fargo
telephone multimedia communications
system product product
distribution distribution distribution 2013
business business business Total
RCA%7% TrekStor
BERL LIREEE R FargoEffEMR —T—=F
DIEETS DIEET DEEL B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET FAT TET
At 1 January n—A—H (9,782) (2,704) (6,811) (19,297)
Total gains or (losses) RERTH R UK
recognised in profit or loss (#) (1) B5E#) (177) (2,329) 845 (1,661)
Settlements ®E 7,748 - - 7,748
Exchange differences PE N ZE%R - (195) - (195)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H (2,211) (5,228) (5,966) (13,405)
(#) Include gains or (losses) (# )&Té%iﬁiﬁ;ﬁﬂiT%“ﬁE’\J
for financial liabilities held TRBEMNKER
at end of reporting period (Eﬁa) (177) (2,329) 845 (1,661)
The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss REEPHERANERLE(BER
including those for liabilities held at end of reporting period WMERRFENEBENER) D7
are presented in other income and other operating expenses REE_ZE—NFE_T—=F
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other + A=+ —RIEFEMNGEER
comprehensive income for the years ended 31 December R E A 2K TR HEAMKA R
2014 and 2013 respectively. Hi&EBRANZE5 -
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(c)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

Disclosure of valuation process used by the
Group and valuation techniques and inputs
used in fair value measurements:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to
the Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the financial controller and the Board of Directors
at least twice a year.

For level 2 and level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
will normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent experience
to perform the valuations.

Valuation technique

EERD

Inputs

BAER

Derivative financial Binomial option Average strike

assets/(liabilities) pricing model
— currency options
fTEemEE/
(BfE) —EW%mE

—“EA MR ERA T EER

Derivative financial Discounted

liabilities — forward cash flows rate
contracts

ITEERAEEPRAH FRATKE A HE X

Commercial units Direct comparison

located in approach meter
Hong Kong
NRBENEEEN  ERLEE ¥ KER

Annual Report F%§ 2014

exchange rate

Forward exchange

Price per square

(c) WEAREEFERANMLER
FF o~ ERDGRAFETE
FRERFA VB A B R
AEENPHEEERAERPBRS
EITPIRNEE MR BN R FER
B(REFEIBATETE) - BH
TERRELATEAEERAES
CER - MBETERESTEEEFE
DR A G ERTF RER

HFE2EREIBATEFEMS -
AEEBRESEREAGERTER
BE AR IHEERLENIMNEEE
BEETEE -

Fair value
DYE
2014 2013
—2-DF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THET TET THET
Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities

&E 8 BE A&

4,824 - - (6119

- (82) - -

23,400 - 25,000 =



For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the

Group and valuation techniques and inputs
used in fair value measurements: (Continued)

Contingent/future
consideration:

- RCA business telephone
system distribution
business

®A/RRRE

—RCARBEZZRNHES

- TrekStor multimedia
product distribution
business
—TrekStorZ B ER D HES

- Fargo communications
product distribution business

— Fargo B Em A HEH

Freehold land and
buildings - India

KARELRET - A

Valuation
technique

fhERT

Discounted
cash flows

FRAERE

Discounted
cash flows

FRAERE

Unobservable
inputs

FUBERLZBARH

Discount rate

A%

Discount rate

R

Discounted Discount rate
cash flows
NRRERE HRE
Direct sales Premium of size
comparison of land
approach
ERHEENRE LTHRERE
Discount on shape
of land
TS
(Discount)/premium
on location of land
T E (%) 5B
Premium on
land usage
THAREEE
Other discounts
Hthir®

During the two years, there were no changes in valuation

techniques used.
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Range
gE

N/A
(2013: 5.00%)

TEm
(Z2-=%:
5.00%)

N/A
(2013: 1.95%)

2.37%-3.47%
(2013: 1.47%-

3.24%)
2.37%-3.47%
(Z2—=F:
1.47%-3.24%)

0%-10%

0%-5%

(15%)-20%

5%

0%-5%

BRASEARANGER
5o EERDRAVESE
FrER A AER @ (5)
Effect on fair value
for increase of inputs Fair value
BAERE MY
ATENZE AVE
2014 2013
ZE-PmE -T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEr  TAR
Assets/(liabilities)
€& /(8f)
Decrease in liability - (2,211)
8BRS
Decrease in liability (3,123)  (5,228)
8BRS
Decrease in liability (951)  (5,966)
afERHD
Increase in assets 23,950 =
BEEM
Decrease in assets
BERD
(Decrease)/Increase
in assets
EE (Rd)/Em
Increase in assets
BEEN
Decrease in assets
BERD
REZMEA - A2 B ERTDIE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z —Z—

e R MR

mE+—A=t—RAILFE

REVENUE 7. N
2014 2013
—E—-MF —2—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Sales of goods HEEM 1,856,245 1,843,970
Net sales return arising from product warranty — ZE @R AEERE S E5E (23,378) (18,428)
1,832,867 1,825,542
SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. SEEH
The Group has four operating segments as follows: AEEMEEBESIMT :
EMS Electronic manufacturing services BFRERYE - BFRERS
Distribution Businesses: DEHFET ¢
Communications Marketing and distribution of BAEm - BHEEHHER
Products (“CP”) communications products Em

Multimedia Products and
Computer Accessories
(“MPCA”)

Gaming Products and
Toys (“GPT”)

Assembling and/or marketing
and distribution of branded
multimedia products and
computer accessories

Marketing and distribution of
gaming and entertainment
products

Operating segments have been changed during the year to reflect

the Group’s realignment of operations. Comparative figures have

been restated to conform to current period’s presentation.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that

offer different products and services. They are managed separately

because each business requires different technology and marketing

strategies.

ZHEBERR - ARRHEHER

BIES PHRIES R

SR
BEERE - EMROHBER
A RBER,

FR- EEDMEBRLRBAREAREE
XBEME - LBRBFOEIRAHHE 2
BIGREF— B o

AEBORED BARBIERBTEL - 12
HARERERSE - SOMBUEE @ R
BERBHBZTRIEEM K& HREE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—ZT—F+-A=+—HILFE

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
those described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
Segment profits or losses do not include share of profits/losses
of associates and joint venture and impairment loss on amounts
due from associates and joint venture. Segment assets do not
include deferred tax assets. Segment liabilities do not include bank
borrowings and deferred tax liabilities.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the
sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market prices.

Information about reportable segment profit
or loss, assets and liabilities:

EMS
&7
HERW
HK$’000
TERT
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE2-Z-F
+ZA=+-HLEEE
Revenue from external customers REIREFPHA 937,416
Intersegment revenue D EBEIA 140,102
Segment profit/(loss) AEEM/(EE) 58,142
Interest revenue FEHA 1,047
Interest expense FEHE 2,286
Depreciation and amortisation MEREE 18,339
Staff costs BIRA 217,791
Other material items of income and ~ EfEARUWA K
expenses: xR :
Impairment of goodwill HERE =
Additions to segment non-current DEIETEBEEILR
assets 40,990
As at 31 December 2014 R-Z—NF
+=ZA=1+-H
Segment assets DEVERE 828,284
Segment liabilities HHEE 319,571
Investments in associates REE N RIRIRE -
Investment in a joint venture R—EEELENRE 134
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LED MBS RR AR S M ERERM T
AL ERR - N EEmIE T BED G
BRAREERERN /B K U
NRIRBERRFBRERER - DHEE
YT BEEEHBREE - DRIRBELTE
ERIRITIEE RERIEAE -

ANEBIRZEATTEL D SEEHE MEEA
BR - N E = e e EEE o

(a) BEREIIEFNEE -

EEREBHNER :

Distribution Businesses

CP MPCA GPT Total
SEBER FHES

BRER REMEH 5879 @ct
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
250,607 557,693 87,151 1,832,867
762 31,357 819 173,040
(9,478) (66,865) (18,785) (36,986)
2 3 9 1,061
5,416 8,171 - 15,873
7,243 2,538 7,386 35,506
33,693 47,037 9,313 307,834
- - 4,840 4,840
6,995 4,022 3,364 55,371
174,707 284,906 73,825 1,361,722
136,396 318,694 106,694 881,355
2,403 - - 2,403
- - - 134



For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE-Z—NE&+-A=1+—HItFE

Investment in an associate
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(@) Information about reportable segment profit (a) BERETIBEMNIEE
or loss, assets and liabilities: (Continued) EEREBENER : (&)
Distribution Businesses
DIEER
EMS CIP MPCA GPT Total
gF SEREDN  HRE®
SERY  BHER REKEM KInA Bt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAET TAET TAET TAET TET
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-g-—=f
(restated) +=A=+—H
HFE (RE5)
Revenue from external customers KA KEFKA 886,777 252,334 594,356 92,075 1,825,542
Intersegment revenue DEBEMA 205,631 260 88,833 - 204,724
Segment profit/(loss) SEEF (EE) 45,104 312 16,084  (10,152) 51,348
Interest revenue B A 998 2 3 22 1,025
Interest expense MERL 1,882 4,439 6,979 = 13,300
Depreciation and amortisation TER#H 18,176 7,612 1,089 6,747 33,624
Staff costs BTRA 216,805 27,583 36,932 8,020 289,340
Other material items of income and ~ EfEAKA K
expenses: xR :
Impairment of goodwill BERE = = = 4,302 4,302
Additions to segment non-current DEIER B A E
assets R 13,007 421 2,745 34 16,207
As at 31 December 2013 R-B—=F
(restated) +=A=+-H
(BE5)
Segment assets DEEE 793699 167,913 393,786 114,661 1,470,059
Segment liabilities NEEE 328,746 132,134 358,901 128,222 948,003
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE-Z—WNE+-A=1+—HItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. SEER(E)
(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit (b) 7 EBURA K% I 2k 85 18 A9 1
or loss: iR -
2014 2013
—F-mFE ZT-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
(restated)
(&&E7)
Revenue WA
Total revenue of reportable segments ME DL A LEZE 2,005,907 2,120,266
Elimination of intersegment revenue 7 EB E WA 58 (173,040) (294,724)
Consolidated revenue el A 1,832,867 1,825,542
2014 2013
—E-mFE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
(restated)
(g&E7)
Profit or loss A EE
Total (loss)/profit of reportable segments HwEnEs (E18), =485 (36,986) 51,348
Intersegment elimination 7 BP A 8 2,750 (9,500)
Unallocated amounts: RAOBEHE
Impairment loss on amount due JE L — [T BE 1 R RRIRDRL(E
from an associate Eia (1,774) (4,165)
Share of profit/(loss) of associates DEBANE R (EE) 2 (129)
Share of loss of a joint venture Dh—EEETEEE (1,433) =
Consolidated (loss)/profit before tax AR (B8) % (37,441) 37,554
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z —Z—

n‘/T\ j

SRR EE

MEF+—A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. SWEHRGE)
Reconciliations of segment assets and (b) PHEEREBRIEER:
liabilities:
2014 2013
—E-NF —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
(restated)
(&=75)
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments HEDHEELE 1,361,722 1,470,059
Elimination of intersegment assets DER A EEH (275,108) (325,630)
Elimination of unrealised profits R B IR v K 8H (6,741) (9,500)
Unallocated amounts: AOBEHEE
Deferred tax assets FEETIBE = 12,221 10,884
Consolidated total assets HEEEH#E 1,092,094 1,145,813
2014 2013
—F-mFE —T=F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
(restated)
(&E7)
Liabilities =L
Total liabilities of reportable segments BEDEEERE 881,355 948,003
Elimination of intersegment liabilities SEE A EEE (275,108) (325,630)
Unallocated amounts: AOBLEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 117,075 111,813
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 17,225 21,237
Consolidated total liabilities ZEBEAE 740,547 755,423

Annual Report &3] 2014 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited FEERZEREREAT 123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE - =

an\

—mE+—A=t—BLLFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. ZIERE)
(c) Geographical information: (c) HEESR :

AREERBINREF WAL

the location and information about its non-current assets DA RIZEEMEHEID 2 IER

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on

by location of assets are detailed below:

BEEMRBERFRNT -

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Revenue PN
Germany 1= 456,567 368,654
The People’s Republic of China REARLME ([HE])

(the “PRC”) (including Hong Kong) (BIEEH) 351,328 351,325
The United States of America (the “U.S.A.”) ZEFERATRH ([Z£H]) 278,890 294,800
Switzerland Imt 152,096 198,928
[taly =l 80,472 107,767
Poland R 99,311 60,331
France EE 111,098 74,261
United Kingdom Y 36,059 66,273
Others HAith 267,046 303,203
Consolidated total RE M 1,832,867 1,825,642

2014 2013
—E-mFE —F—=

HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHET

Non-current assets kRBEE
Germany = 18,640 16,598
The PRC (including Hong Kong) RE (BIEEE) 108,915 78,821
The U.S.A. EgE 28,144 42,322
Others HAith 5,492 2,698
Consolidated total SRR G 161,191 140,439
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

(d) Revenue from major customers: (d) REFEEZFHWA :
An analysis of revenue from major customers which account HAREBWBAI0%EIA EHERR
for 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue is as follows: FUADITIOTR ¢
2014 2013
—B-mE —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
EMS segment BT RERE DI
Largest customer Sy 200,409 208,592
Distribution Business - MPCA segment 5% - SIHBERR
E e 2 &P
Largest customer SN = 259,901 258,961
2014 2013
—B-NE —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE&xT FHTT
Bank interest income RITHBUA 1,061 1,025
Compensation from suppliers REHEEA/mE 3,968 -
Consultancy fee income EBEEWA 762 2,328
Discount on acquisition (note 41(a)) WHEHTaR (Hit41(a) 1,918 915
Gain on derivative assets or liabilities PTHEEESRABKER 9,122 883
Gain on financial liabilities at fair value BEAVEGF AR REERE
through profit or loss (note 37) (H1:£37) 6,036 -
Insurance claim REERE 1,649 3
Promotion contribution from suppliers HERHEES 15,868 -
Rental income HEWA 318 =
Reversal of allowance for trade receivables JE UK E Z B 3 5 B - 2,612
Reversal of commission payable FEfHA £ B[O 444 =
Reversal of copyright fee provisions i e B2 43 g 8 1 1,281 5,019
Reversal of license fees provisions R E B R AR 5,953 -
Reversal of overly provided discount provisions — #731#% {8 58 [0 5,841 3,742
Sales of scrap materials SHE R 4,458 1,175
Sales of tooling to an associate m—fAEEAREHE LA 4,274 -
Others Hih 2,937 6,170
65,890 23,872
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE-Z—WNE+-A=1+—HItFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BERA
2014 2013
—®-OFE —FT-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Bank overdraft interest 1TES B 14 11
Bank loans interest ﬁE TERF A 3,141 1,523
Interest on import/export loans OB E 1,217 740
Interest on factoring loans ZREBEERFE 6,323 6,752
Other interest expenses HF B X 5,178 4,274
15,873 13,300
Interests on bank overdraft, bank loans, import/export loans and RITHEY  BITER EHOEREE
factoring loans are related to bank borrowings wholly repayable REBEFNNEEE AR DFANER
within five years. RIRTTIEERE -
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FrSFix
2014 2013
—E-mEF —FT—=F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BVERFI IR — A NG
Provision for the year FERME 8,177 8,014
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 82 39
8,259 8,053
Current tax — Overseas BIHARR I8 — /84N
Provision for the year FEEE 1,866 3,502
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFERETIR (BEEE) 618 (1,809)
2,484 1,693
Deferred tax (note 38) FEERTE (K77£38) (5,911) (3,606)
4,832 6,140
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 EHZE—Z

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2013:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31

December 2014.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated

at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group

operates, based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices

in respect thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of (loss)/profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong

Profits Tax rate is as follows:

(Loss)/profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate

of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible
Tax effect of temporary differences

not recognised
Tax effect of tax concession
Under/(over)-provision in prior years
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses

not previously recognized
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

Income tax expense

BREAT (B518), &
REBFEBHE16.5%
TE—=4 :16.5%) ;&
AR ARG &
AR B AR &
RERERZBENRISHE

BERENBBHEE

PBEFERETR (BEREE)

FABEARERRIBESED
B R
RERBEEBENRBTE
MBARMEERNTE

PSR
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RE-F-—mE+=A=+—BILFRE

N SEEES S g Tl
16.5%) MY REHEEEH

—F=F:
S -

' 1% 16.5%

H A3 77 ERTUR M IR & A IR A%

B L AERRE R R
AP REREREFE

RIBEHIRTT

S BiR X BB B AT (B51R), SR M RIAE

REES
s ¢

2014
—E-mE
HK$’000
FHERT

(37,441)

3 ZBiA (6,178)
(5,809)

11,919

(1,131)
(5,656)
700

(202)
9,626
1,563

4,832

HMEFEL ZE8ENBEE RN

2013

—EF—=F

HK$’000
TAT
37,554

6,196
(7,994)
13,381

(203)
(4,473)
(1,770)

(370)
1,049
324

6,140



For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE - =

The Group’s (loss)/profit for the year is stated after charging/

(crediting) the followings:

Amortisation of intangible assets

(included in selling and distribution expenses)

Auditor’s remuneration
Allowance for receivables, net (hote 27)
Bad debt written off of other receivables
Cost of goods sold (Note (i)

Cost of inventories sold

Allowance for inventories

Reversal of allowance for inventories (Note (ii))

Depreciation
Directors’ emoluments
As directors
For management

Research and development expenditure
(including in other operating expenses)
(Note (iii)

Exchange loss, net

(Gain)/loss on derivative assets or liabilities

(Gain)/loss on financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

Impairment loss on goodwill (included in
other operating expenses)

Impairment loss of amounts due from
associates (included in other
operating expenses)

(Gain)/loss on disposals of fixed assets

Operating lease charges
Land and buildings

Staff costs including directors’ emoluments
Salaries, bonus and allowances
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

—mE+—A=t—BLLFE

AT RIREEIIGAT

B EESE GTAHEER
7R

BN B =

UK IR BT (Mit27)
5 L At PR LSRR 2 3 AR
SHERA (H120)
BEEFERA

FERE

FERERE (A120)

e
E=We
=

T E

MRS GTAEMKEEER)
(K1 aE i)

b L B RS EE
THEBEXEE (W) BE
BRFEFABRENERAE
(Wezs),/ B8R
BEREER GIARMKEEE

JE Wt 2 R IR IERE S 1R
(FEARMEEER)

ﬁﬁliﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁ
z«mééfﬂ \/\
im&@$

BINA (BREEHS)
Hre o BALNREL
BRIKTEHET IR
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2014
—E-mE
HK$’000
Tt

13,632
3,263
2,291

22,212

1,494,536
23,001
(33,181)

1,484,356

21,874

540
8,472

9,012

46,239
7,244
(9,122)
(6,036)

4,840

6,048
(4)

21,364

276,253
31,581

307,834

AEBFE(BR)JafEDNR,(GTA)

2013

—EF—=%F

HK$’000
TAT

14,271
3,198
231

1,447,876
31,558
(27,156)

1,452,278

19,3583

540
9,850

10,390

44,392
2,762
6,119
1,661
4,302
4,165
3,901

20,735

275,221
14,119

289,340
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Notes:

(i

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, cost of goods sold includes
of approximately HK$141,903,000 (2013: HK$146,737,000) relating to
staff costs and depreciation, amounts of which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types
of expenses.

The Group makes allowance for inventories under respective aged criteria in
different segments. The reversal of such allowance represents the amount
of inventories subsequently used in production or sold.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, research and development
expenditure includes approximately HK$39,828,000 (2013: HK$37,508,000)
relating to staff costs, amounts of which are also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types of
expenses.

n‘/T\

S8 ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ

—mE+t—A=t—RHILLtEFEE

FE(ER), 87 (8

Hret

(i)

BE_Z-ME+_A=t—HILLFE "
%%wm REHREIRARNEN
141,908,000/ 7C(—F — =4 :146,737,000
BIT)  HERBIET A LXERRESE
FXHABEE ©

AEEHERAE B RINRRENNETR
TEHBHE - BB DR ERANEER N E
NEFESHE -

BE—ZT-MFE+_A=+—HILFE '
TR BEA BB KA 439,828,000
TT(ZZE—=% :37,508,0008 L) * ZE&
R A L XER B S B2 SR M4
B o
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e R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE-Z—WNE+-A=1+—HItFE

13. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 13. EERIEBEEHFATHNHE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(@) Directors’ remuneration (a) EEB2
The emoluments of each director were as follows: SEEMESWNT

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Discretionary
Fees inkind  contribution bonus Total
Fe 2BR BB
Name of director BENE e ENFlE HEE MERA @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tir TiEr e TAL

Year ended 31 December 2014  HZ-Z-M&E+=H

=t-HLEE
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok, Steve BEREE (2E)

(Chairman) - 3,026 129 - 3,155
Mr. Lee Kai Bon TEPLE - 1,308 56 - 1,364
Mr. Ng Kim Yuen REREE - 1,482 63 - 1,545
Mr. Poon Ka Lee, Barry AR EE - 1,174 17 - 1,191
Madam Fok Pui Yin ERELL - 1,167 50 - 1,217

- 8,157 315 - 8,472

Independent non-executive directors BV /TEE
Mr. Au-yang Cheong Yan, Peter BERRELLE 180 o - - 180
Mr. Kwan Pun Fong, Vincent o Yabited 180 - - - 180
Mr. Xue Quan BRAE 180 - - - 180
Total @it 540 8,157 315 - 9,012
Year ended 31 December 2013  EHZ-F-=%+_f

St-HLEE
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok, Steve BEREE (F8)

(Chairman) - 2,960 127 520 3,607
Mr. Lee Kai Bon TERRE - 1,275 54 245 1,574
Mr. Ng Kim Yuen RIEREE - 1,448 62 270 1,780
Mr. Poon Ka Lee, Barry Xyt - 1,137 15 285 1,437
Madam Fok Pui Yin EMEt - 1,134 48 270 1,452

- 7,954 306 1,590 9,850
Independent non-executive directors BV HH/TEE
Mr. Au-yang Cheong Yan, Peter  BISRE%4 180 - - - 180
Mr. Kwan Pun Fong, Vincent o Yabited 180 - - - 180
Mr. Xue Quan HEEE 180 - - - 180
Total it 540 7,954 306 1,590 10,390
Neither the Chairman nor any of the directors waived any F I R Sk E B A
emoluments during the year (2013: nil). e (ZT—=F: &) -
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e R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 13. EERTEEEFALITNME

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued) (&)
(b) Five highest paid individuals’ remuneration (b) mEEBREFATHHME
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the REE - AEENhERRHAT
year included 2 (2013: 2) directors whose emoluments are BiE2R(ZE—=F : 28)&EF -
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments HMER EXaTHR 25 ° 88 T3
of the remaining 3 (2013: 3) individuals are set out below: H(ZZE—=F : 3R)EaFHALT
B2 EHNAT

2014 2013

—F-mFE —FT-=F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Basic salaries and allowances %$%ﬁi\&i$ﬁﬁ 6,863 7,133
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRAEFIGET B 3K 196 190
7,059 7,323

The emoluments fell within the following band: BN T 5 EE
2014 2013
=2-pmF —F—=

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7C £ 2,000,000 7T 1 1

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001% 7 £2,500,0007 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 723,000,000/ 7T = -

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7L £3,500,0007 7T 1 1
3 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

FA - ARETEATAESLR
BRHALIAME - MEREFE
AN BR S IN R AN 5% B Y B2 R SR B BB B

g -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5%
of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount
of contribution HK$1,500 (before 1 June 2014: HK$1,250) per
employee and vest fully with employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and wages to the central pension scheme to fund the retirement
benefits. The local municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of these subsidiaries. The only obligation of these
subsidiaries with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet
the required contributions under the scheme.

The subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in the U.S.A. and
Germany make monthly contribution to the social security fund
managed by respective relevant authorities, which undertake the
retirement obligations of the Group’s employees in the U.S.A. and
Germany. The Group has no obligation for payment of retirement
benefits beyond the monthly contributions. The contributions
payable are charged as an expense to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as and when incurred.

The profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
includes a profit of approximately HK$577,000 (2013:
HK$17,836,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

Annual Report &%} 2014

AEBZRBE ARG M ABERTENEG B
HeRoBEREAREHRIBHERTES
FrEI([aEestEl]) - A"EEERERS
S RTES%MBESFEMELER - 1
BARRERABRER500%8T(Z
T—POFENA—HAT ¢ 1,250%7T) © KA
BESFTEIEDHRE - HREEERRE
P
AEERFBEKLZHBAREERES
AT T BT 2 2 P RIR RS ETEIK
8 - ZEMB AR EREEEAFHERT
BETBD AP RBIREFTEED #
B AR A BRIRER o 75 T BUT &
HAEAEZENBARIMERAB K AEBEIK
RBEBZEARBENEMT - ZZHEBARIFF
SRR ST E 2 — B ERIBERZETEIE
TR o

RERE R EREMRZZ AEEHE QR
AEEEREREEZHEREEERA
TR - AEAEEXEREEERZ
RIREAE « BRIZAHSN  ARELEE
R REMREE - BRHREELZ
RREFABRERAERFAS S -

ARQBEE ARBRFERE MBI
577,000/ 7C( —Z— =4 : 17,836,000/
7T) » EERADN IS BRERANERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z —Z—

B IR HRAR MR

mE+—A=t—RAILFE

DIVIDENDS 16. KRE
2014 2013
—E-mF —ZF—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
2013 Final of HK$0.025 (2012: HK$0.02) per —E-=F R LER0.025
ordinary share BT (ZE—=4F : 0.0287L) 10,293 8,234
2014 Interim of HK$0.015 (2013: HK$0.015) —E—UF A BERREREA%0.015
per ordinary share BT (ZZT—=4 :0.01587T) 6,176 6,176
16,469 14,410
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend in ﬁiﬂﬁifi{é BEEEE ?f%zify E¢

respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 of HK$0.015 per
shares has been proposed by the directors and is subject to
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

0015/%7|: AR
#fE - TTAEE o

17. EREF

FRRNEERRAS

2014 2013
—E2—-F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Earnings &R
Profit attributable to owners of the Company, FBREEGRERZF 2
used in the basic earnings per share A EEE AEG R T
calculation 577 28,566
Number of shares BRE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR EERERZE T 2
for the purpose of calculating basic N5 X m AR AR EK
earnings per share 411,714,000 411,714,000

No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company did
not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares during the two years.

BEBEkK
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Group

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2013

Additions

Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 41(c) and (d))

Gain on property revaluation

Elimination of accumulated
depreciation

Disposals

Exchange differences

At 31 December 2013 and
1 January 2014

Additions

Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 41(a) and (b))

Elimination of accumulated
depreciation

Loss on property revaluation

Disposals

Exchange differences

At 31 December 2014

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2013
Charge for the year
Elimination on revaluation
Written back on disposals
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2013 and
1 January 2014

Charge for the year

Elimination on revaluation

Written back on disposals

Exchange differences

At 31 December 2014
Carrying amount

At 31 December 2014
At 31 December 2013

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

Land and
buildings
TR
g3
HK$’000
THL
RS EE
R-ZZE-=%5—-F—H 25,000
BB =
Wi BE R B A A
(Wiat41(c) R(d) -
MEEH N 1,000
ZEHTERKE
(1,000)
& -
[N =58 =
R-E—=%+-A=+—H
k=F-M%—A-H 25,000
BE =
WBEHI B A A
(Hist41(8) kb)) 24,314
ZETER
(1,000)
MEBMHER (600)
& -
X EHE (364)
RZE-ME+-A=+—B 47,350
2iHiE
R-Z-=%—f—H =
FEER 1,000
SHHH (1,000)
HERE =
fEHZ% _
R_ZE—=%+-A=1+—H
RZZ-NFE-A—-H -
EREM 1,000
BhEE (1,000)
HERE =
[EHESD =
RZE-NF+-A=1+—H =
BREE
R-Z-NE+-A=+—-HB 47,350
R-ZE—=%+-A=+—H 25,000
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REE
Plant,
machinery,
Leasehold moulds
improvements and tools
BE
HE #E A
HEIR RIA
HK$'000  HK$'000
THL THL
10,776 137,935
770 11,435
- 186
(4,967)  (28,254)
233 1,922
6,812 123,224
3,638 13,879
- 1,373
(4) (10)
(7) (555)
10,439 137,911
7,253 88,494
1,937 14,185
(4,443)  (24,671)
161 1,423
4,908 79,431
1,398 15,439
(4) (2)
17) (236)
6,285 94,632
4,154 43,279
1,904 43,793

Furniture
and
equipment

BRR
B
HK$'000
TR

14,666
2,061

113

(1,670)
249

15,419
8,102

(wé
(531)

22,495

9,284
2,107

(1,649)
155

9,897
3,862

(421)
(270)

13,068

9,427
5,522

Motor
vehicles

RE
HK$'000
TR

1,996
538

(18)
2,516

1,368
124

20

1,612
175

(11)
1,676

840
484

Total

EH
HK$'000
THET

190,115
14,266

543
1,000

(1,000)
(34,891)
2,418

172,451
26,157

25,687

(1,000)
(600)
(509)

(1,475)

220,711

106,399
19,353
(1,000)
(30,763)
1,759

95,748
21,874
(1,000)
(427)
(534)

115,661

106,050
76,703
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

18. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 18. EE&EE(E)
The analysis of the cost or valuation of the above assets is as LM EENRASEEITOAT -
follows:
Plant,
machinery, Furniture
Land and Leasehold moulds and Motor
buildings improvements and tools equipment vehicles Total
BE
TR HE Hes BRK

g REIR BARIA B4 nE 2
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

FTHET THL THT THET FTHET FTHET
At 31 December 2014 R=-Z2—D&
+=g=+-8
At cost BN - 10,439 137,911 22,495 2,516 173,361
At valuation &1 47,350 = . = - 47,350
47,350 10,439 137,911 22,495 2,516 220,711
At 31 December 2013 R-F—=%F
+=-A=+—8H
At cost PR - 6,812 123224 15419 1996 147,451
At valuation (E1E 25,000 - = - - 25000
25,000 6,812 123224 15419 1,096 172,451
The carrying amount of the Group’s land and buildings would ANER B £ 3 AR FRRE(E 4Y /27,862,000
have been approximately HK$27,862,000 (2013: HK$3,882,000) BIL(ZZT—=%4 : 3,882,000 7T) ' &
had they been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and BB REHTE KRB EIBEIER o

impairment losses.
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The Group’s land and buildings is analysed as follows:

In Hong Kong BH
Medium term leases AR HAFR 49

In India ENfE
Freehold KA FERE

The Group’s land and buildings in Hong Kong were revalued at
31 December 2014 on the open market value basis by reference
to market evidence of recent transactions for similar properties
by Multiple Surveyors & Consultants Limited (2013: performed by
Colliers International (HK) Ltd), an independent firm of professional

surveyors.

The Group’s freehold land and buildings in India were revalued at
31 December 2014 on the open market value basis by reference
to market evidence of recent transactions for similar properties
by Colliers International (India) Property Services Pvt. Ltd., an
independent firm of professional surveyors. The title deed and
original sale deed are now in the stamp duty office’s custody for
final stamp duty assessment. The Group would obtain full legal
title after completing the stamp duty assessment and stamp duty

payment process.
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2014 2013
—E—MEF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiExT FET
23,400 25,000
23,950 -
47,350 25,000

YB3 B 5B 2 A0 =75 P & FORI 26 K B
TERRB(ZZ—=5 : B NEEY
XERE (FB)ARQRET)KLEHEL
MERORZOTHEERR R _F—N
FtA=tT—HEHRAKELHEET
B ARTE

¥ B ¥R & B E % FT Colliers
International (India) Property Services Pvt.
Ltd. K2 Z LY XSO R HHIT 5B F
% RZE—NF+-_A=+—HEHGHAE
SEKAREL M PBFORFATIE - X
BB R RIBHERBIR A EDER P ER
BENHBZRENETR AL - REBAEHOH
TER T REDFER A RURIR TR B IS 2
EATEFHE o



19.

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Finanoial Statements

B IR HRAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z —Z—

n‘/T\

MEF+—A=+—HILFE

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. FENHEFIE
The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent prepayments for AEBRBANHEEFERZPHHANER
using certain factory premises outside Hong Kong under medium BABFEINGE TREME 2 TBRNFIE - R
term leases. At end of reporting period, the factory premises was :‘:HHE C REEDERERD o Bt - &
still under construction. Therefore, no amortisation of prepaid lease ET—NFF+ZA=T—HILEFETE
payments was resulted for the year ended 31 December 2014. TEfS TR EFRIAEESE -
GOODWILL 20. BHE
Group REE
GAEMS Greenware
CGU CGU
within GPT within CP
segment segment Total
EEERK BARER
GEADH  2BWER
GAEMSH & BeHRe
EEEN EEEN Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHT FHEL FHIT
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2013 RZZE—=F—H—H 12,157 = 12,157
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary AW —HEMNB AR MES
(note 41(d)) (BfsF41(a) - 456 456
At 31 December 2013, 1 January 2014 and RZBE—=F+-A=+—H - 12,157 456 12,613
31 December 2014 —mHE-—A—BR
—mE+=-ZA=+—H
Accumulated impairment losses R RERSE
Impairment losses recognised in the year BE_ZE—=F1+-H=1—H 4,302 = 4,302
ended 31 December 2013 and balance IEERANFEEBER
at 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R-ZE—=F+_A=+—8BRK
—HF—A—BR&EH
Impairment loss recognised in current year RAFEERREESRE 4,840 - 4,840
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—MFE+_A=+—H 9,142 = 9,142
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NE+-_A=+—H 8,018 456 3,471
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+_-A=+—H 7,855 456 8,311
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Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUs”) that are expected
to benefit from that business combination. Before recognition of
impairment losses, the carrying amount of goodwill had been
allocated to the GAEMS CGU and Greenware CGU.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined
on the basis of their value in use using discounted cash flows
method. The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow
method are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and
budgeted gross margin and turnover during the period. The Group
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on long-term
average economic growth rate of the geographical area in which
the businesses of the CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin and
turnover are based on past practices and expectations on market
development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five
years with the residual period using the growth rate of 3% (2013:
3%). This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant markets.

The rates used to discount the forecast cash flows from the
GAEMS CGU and the Greenware CGU are 14.8% (2013: 22.3%)
and 24.0% (2013: 24.0%) respectively.

At 31 December 2014, before impairment testing, goodwill of
HK$7,855,000 was allocated to GAEMS CGU within the GPT
segment. Due to changes in market condition, the Group has
revised its cash flow forecasts for this CGU. The directors have
consequently determined to write off the goodwill allocated to
GAEMS CGU amounting to HK$4,840,000 (2013: HK$4,302,000)
during the year. No other write-down of the assets of GAEMS CGU
is considered necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IR HRAR MR

MEF+—A=+—HILFE

n‘/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z —Z—

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. EBFEE
Group ANE
License Customer
Trademarks rights  relationship Patents Technologies Total
(note a) (note b) (note ) (note d) (note e)
BE fyaE EFBR C4] 30} @t
(Hista) (His#o) (Histc) (Hia) (Histe)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THT THx THT THL TR
Cost KA
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=F—F—H 17,664 37,382 30,144 17,152 2,819 105,161
Acquisition of a subsidiary W —FE AR
(note 41(c)) (H41c) 692 = 706 - - 1,398
Exchange differences ERES 597 - 134 - - 781
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F+-fA=1—H
1 January 2014 kZZ-mE—A—H 18,953 37,382 30,984 17,152 2,819 107,290
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B A Al
(note 41(a)) (Hi#41() 992 - 1,693 - 842 3,527
Exchange differences EREE (1,858) - (573) - (90) (2,521)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-WE+=A=+—H 18,087 37,382 32,104 17,152 3,571 108,296
Accumulated amortisation and EitBERAEEE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2013 W-E-=%—-f-H 122 17,059 15,080 5,003 235 37,499
Amortisation for the year FEBH - 4,302 4741 4,288 940 14,271
Exchange differences BRER 5 - 90 - - 9%
At 31 December 2013 and RZE-=%+-fA=t1-H
1 January 2014 kZE-NE-F—H 127 21,361 19,911 9,291 1,175 51,865
Amortisation for the year FREH - 3,204 5,055 4,288 1,085 13,632
Exchange differences ERER (15) = (318) = = (333)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-WE+=A=+-H 112 24,565 24,648 13,579 2,260 65,164
Carrying amount RE®
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-EF+-A=1—H 17,975 12,817 7,456 3,573 1,311 43,132
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+-A=1-H 18,826 16,021 11,073 7,861 1,644 55,425
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Notes:

(a) The Group’s trademarks registration protect the design and specification of
the Group’s “TrekStor”, “Maestro”, “Rydeen” and “Falcom” trademarks, and
were assessed to have indefinite useful lives.

(b) License rights represent the right to use the “RCA” trademark in trading of
certain manufactured business phones in the United States and Canada. The
remaining amortisation period of the license rights is 4 years (2013: 5 years).

Originally, the Group had the license rights for the period from 1 March
2009 to 31 December 2013. On 8 February 2011, Telefield NA Inc., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, reached an agreement with the
licensor to extend the license period for an additional terms of five years from
1 January 2014 up to and including 31 December 2018. The consideration
for the additional license rights period is based on certain percentage of net
sales of Telefield NA Inc. for the calendar year 2014 to 2018 with annual
minimum guaranteed amounts increased progressively throughout the five
calendar years.

At initial recognition in 2011, the cost of the license rights was based on
the fair value of license fee payable of approximately HK$16,021,000. The
discount rate used was 18.3%. The license fee payable is subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

(c) Customer relationship represents the future economic benefit to the Group
arising from regular contact between individual customer and the business
entity before business combination. The amortising period of customer
relationship is 3 — 6 years (2013: 3 — 6 years).

(d) Patents represent certain registered patents and patents under registration
process in relation to design and utility of the portable gaming console. The
amortisation period of patents is 4 years (2013: 4 years).

(e) Technologies represent GPS and modem technologies. The Group has
offered several GPS and modem product for wireless tracking applications.
The amortisation period of technologies is 3 years (2013: 3 years).

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
intangible assets. The recoverable amounts of the relevant assets
have been determined on the basis of the value in use of CGUs
in which the relevant assets belong. The discount rates used in
measuring value in use ranging from 15% to 31% (2013: 21% to
25%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z —Z—

n‘/T\

B IR HRAR MR

mE+—A=t—RAILFE

Unlisted investment, at cost

FLEMERE - R

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as

follows:

Place of incorporation/ Issued and

RMEATNERE
PiN/NE]
2014 2013
—E—mEF —T—=
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET
3,171 3,171
FEU (FERD) B A RFIAAEIKF - &

B NEIEEERY -

R-ZE-—MOF+-A=+—HBHBEBRFF

I=3/N

Percentage of

ownership interest/
voting power/profit

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital sharing Principal activities
ElREEER
WEARER EMAL/ R BRTRAZRE ZE/HZRNEIN  TEEE
2014 2013
—Z-mE —T-=F
Telefield Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 410,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding
(“BV.L) of US$1 each RAZR
RERRES 410,000 B REE1ETH
((RBRXES)) LRk
Able Trend Technology Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 85% 90%  Design of electronic components
RBNRAERAA A HK$10,590 HA Bl
(2013: HK$10,000)
10,5908 T (ZB—=%:
10,000 7) A& AR
Affonso Limited B.V.I 1,000 ordinary shares of 51% 100%  Investment holding
RBRAMS US$1 each (2013: 510 REZR
ordinary shares of
US$1 each)
1,000 SREE1ETH
Lk (Z5—=F:
510RBREEIXTH
LiRk)
Aiko Products Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Trading of electrical appliances,
HERBRAF BE HK$10,000 provision of consultancy and
10,0007 7L A0 & R agency services

ERED  REBRRRERE
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BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE - =

an\

—mE+—A=t—BLLFE

B A R IRE ()
R-B—m+=-A=+—AHBEARFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 22.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as

follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued and

(&)

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/profit

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital sharing Principal activities
ElERERER
WEARER EMAL/ R BH BRTRAZRE ZR/HZEAAS TEER
2014 2013
“3-mF ZF-=F
Allied Express (China) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding
EE (P8) BRAA Bk HK$1 (2013: Nil) REER
1BLRLRER
(—’7' —ZF: H)
Alagona Holdings Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERAHS US$1 each RAZR
REREEIZTHLER
B. Kettner Products Hong Kong Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% - Inactive
EREIMARERAF A HK$1 (2013: Nil) TEEH
1BTHERR
(ZB-=%: §)
Bracciano Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERAEE US$1 each REZR
1REREEIZTHLER
Brilliant Ace Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 51% - Investment holding
PRAERAA B HK$1 (2013: HK$1) RERR
1BTHERR
(ZE—=%: 1)
Brilliant Ace India 50,000 equity share 51% - Property investment
Communications Private Limited g of Rs.10 each MERE
50,000 B REE10E
Bk
Calibre Holdings Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Investment holding
RBRIEE of US$1 each REER

1REREEI XA ERR
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BTSRRI EE

mE+—A=t—RAILFE

n‘/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z —Z—

R B AR IRE ()
R-B-—m+=A=+—AHBEARFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 22.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as

follows (Continued):

Place of incorporation/ Issued and

R (88)

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/profit

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital sharing Principal activities
ElREEER /
WEARER MR/ R BRTRAZRE RER/HTEAAIN FTEH
2014 2013
“§-BE ZT-=F
Circuit Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Property investment
A HK$10,000 NERE
10,0008 LM &K
Ease Able Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
HEERAA B 1REREESTHLBR REBR
Ever Billion Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of 100% - Inactive
FEEXARAR B HK$1 (2013: Nil) EEXE
1BTHERR
(ZB-=%: &)
Falcom GmbH Germany 100,000 ordinary shares 53% - Trading of modems and
=8 of EUR1 of each related parts for
100,000 S REE1BUTH communications products
LR EERAEnNRRRAER
il s
Fargo Telecom Asia Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 64% 53%  Investment holding and trading
) HK$10,000 of communications products
10,0008 )& AR REERRAAERES
Fargo Telecom Holdings Limited B.V.I. 1,063,830 ordinary shares 64% 53%  Investment holding
RERTES of US$1 each REER
1,063,830 G R EE1%7TH)
TRk
Fargo Telecom Technologies India 50,000 equity shares 64% 53%  Trading of communications
Private Limited £ of Rs.10 each products
50,000 SR EE10E ) BAEMES
G.AEMS. Inc. USA. 13,265 shares at 51% 51%  Design, development, trading,
e no par value distribution and sale of mobile
13,265 EE AR electronic gaming and
entertainment systems
MEEF U RRE RSN RE
% BB DHREE
Gabrio International Limited BV.I 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBRAHS of US$1 each RERR

SRAEIXTHEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE-Z—WNE+-A=1+—HItFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 22. AMIBRARIMNKRE(HE)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as RZE—N+=-—A=1+—HBWBATFE
follows (Continued): TR (4E) -

Percentage of
ownership interest/

Place of incorporation/ Issued and voting power/profit
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital sharing Principal activities
ElhRaRES
WELAREH EMRY HIBE  BRORMERA RER/REENASL TEXH
2014 2013
—E-mF —T-=F
GAEMS International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 51% 51%  Trading, distribution and sales
DRTERERAR &b HK$1,000 of mobile electronic gaming and
1,000 L& @R entertainment systems
PHERHEE
Greenware Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 51% 42%  Environmental monitoring system
SRR 2ERAT] 0 HK$169,583 and integration services
preference shares BRERZOEM RS
of HK$3,000
169,583 TR BB R
3,000 THE LR
Keenpro Investments Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERREARAT] AERRES IREERIETAEBR RERR
Lucky Century International Limited B.V.I. 1,000 ordinary shares 51% - Investment holding
RERAMS of US$1 each REER
1,000% B R EE1ETH
Macar Holdings Limited BV 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
EERAES US$1 each REER
1REREEIETH L RR
Maestro Wireless Holdings Limited B.V.I 100 ordinary shares of 64% 53%  Inactive
EERAES US$1 each i
1008 B REE1ETH)
LAR
Maestro Wireless Solutions Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 64% 53%  Trading of modems and related
AEBERRBRAR i 10087 A1 Z AR parts for communications
products
BEBAERMBARBRESR
R@ET
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z —Z—

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as

follows (Continued):

Place of incorporation/ Issued and

22.

n‘/T\

B IR HRAR MR

MEF+—A=+—HILFE

RE B AR RE ()

N-Z—m+=A=+—BHBAREE
R (E) :

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/profit

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital sharing Principal activities
ElhRaRES
WEARER AL/ R BH BRTRAZRE RER/HZEAEI TEEHK
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=%
Metro Creator Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding and trading of
AEBRAF BE HK$10,000 multimedia products
10,0008 L) & AR REBRREBESHBER
Modern Channel Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Development of electronic
BBBRAR BE HK$10,000 medical devices
10,0008 LAY & B REETEAER
Phoenix Choice Holdings Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
RERAES US$1 each (2013: Nil) RERKR
IREERIETHERER
(Z5-=%: 8)
Rydeen North America Inc. USA. 1,000 shares at no par value 75% 75%  Design, development, trading,
%H 1,000 EEERR distribution of consumer
electronics
ETHEmORG  RE EE-
N
Sino Achieve Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding and trading
hRAERAH &R HK$5,000,000 REBRRES
5,000,000/ T #) &Mk
Smart Gears Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 64% 53%  Investment holding and trading
MARBARAR BE 1008 TTH) LR of plastic parts for
communications products,
provision of software and
hardware development services
REERREERAERNEH
2 RESHREARERE
Sota Acoustics Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of 100% - Inactive
&% HK$1 (2013: Nil) LEXE

1B T RER
(Z2-=f£:8)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE-Z—WNE+-A=1+—HItFE

REBARINIRE (F)
N-Z—m+=A=+—HBHBARHE
R (E) -

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 22.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as
follows (Continued):

Place of incorporation/ Issued and

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/profit

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital sharing Principal activities
ElEREEER
WEARER AL/ RIS BRTRAZRE RER/LTRAEAIN FEEEK
2014 2013
Z8-MmEF “3-=F
Space Wisdom Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Inactive
BRERAT ERRREHS US$1 each S 37
RERAEIZTHLER
STI Technology Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 49% 49%  Trading of professional
ZERRBRAF BB HK$4,000,000 audio equipments
4,000,000 7T A1 E AR EXEEREES
Telefield Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
mEGKARAA BB 1BTHERR RERR
Telefield GAEMS Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
B BTHERR RERR
Telefield India Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 51% 100%  Investment holding
&k BT L AR RERR
Telefield Industrial (India) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 51% 100%  Investment holding
Eli HK$15,000 RERKR
15,0008 LA Z B
Telefield Japan Inc. Japan Share capital of 100% 100%  EMS marketing and
BA JPY9,500,000 agency services
f%%9,500,0008 ETRERBTHERERARRS
Telefield Lifestyle Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 85% 75%  Trading and EMS agency services
PEEENRARAR &k HK$700,000 EHRETRERGRERS
700,000 LA &R
Telefield Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% Investment holding, electronic
HEERNF E5 HK$20,000,000 and manufacturing services for
non-voting deferred telecommunications, security,
shares of HK$5,000,000 car electronics, home
20,000,000 L8 L& appliances, other consumer
5,000,000/ 7TH) and industrial electronic products
ERFEELER N RERK @ut i R% - AEET
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z —Z—

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as

follows (Continued):

Place of incorporation/ Issued and

22.

n\/—_l_\

BTSRRI EE

mE+—A=t—RAILFE

RHBQERRE (&)

N-Z—m+=A=+—BHBAREE
R (E) :

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/profit

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital sharing Principal activities
ElERERER
KEARER HRMAL/ KLY BRTRAZRE REE/HEBAEIL TEER
2014 2013
“¥-BmF —F-=F
Telefield Medical Devices Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Trading and development of
EREZNERATA B HK$1,000 electronic medical devices
1,000 LA E Bk ETREREES AR
Telefield Medical Imaging Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of 55% 100%  Development of electronic
hEREHEAERAT BA HK$1,000,000 medical devices
1,000,000 7Tk & B ETERRBRE
Telefield NA Inc. USA. Share capital of 100% 100%  Trading of business
%H US$2,000,000 telephone system
1 72,000,000% 7T BREFRZRES
Telefield TrekStor S.a.r.l. Luxembourg 200 registered shares 51% 51%  Investment holding and
ERE of EUR125 each sub-licensing of trademark
200/ B IR A 126804 REERRAREREHE
SRR LR
Telefield Universal Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding and trading
PERRERAA &R HK$15,600,000 RERRRES
15,600,000 T SR
Telefield Vision Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding and trading
BREARERRAA BE HK$10,000 of computer accessories
10,0007 &) & @k REBRREREMNES
Telefield Industries (India) Private Limited India 1,000,000 equity shares 51% 100%  Electronic manufacturing service
HE of Rs.10 each for home appliances
1,000,000% R EE10E L, FRBRETRERK
iy
Telefield Zen Industries Private Limited  India 1,000,000 equity shares 51% 100%  Trading of consumer electronics
0 of Rs.10 each ETHBMES
1,000,005 &R EE10E,
MR
TK-Trade SR.L. Italy Share capital of EUR15,000 51% 51%  Marketing and agency services
EAH f&715,0008A T iR R RS
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 22. HMBATNIRE (&)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as N-T—m+—-A=+—HBKBA TS
| () -

follows (Continued):
Percentage of
ownership interest/

Place of incorporation/ Issued and voting power/profit

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital sharing Principal activities
ElhRaRES
WELAREH EMRY HIBE  BRORMERA RER/REENASL TEXH
2014 2013
“g-BmF “F-=F
TrekStor GmbH Germany Share capital of EUR25,000 51% 51%  Assembling, marketing and
{2E 1R 425,00080 7T distribution of “TrekStor"
branded products such
as portable storage devices
and multimedia products
% . BT A 8 [TrekStor]
WWFW mEEAFREEMN
SHRRED
TrekStor Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 51% 51%  Holding of trademark and
&b 1008 T # SRR intellectual property,
licensing of trademark
BRBRRAZER  UREFER
TS Technology International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 60% 60%  Investment holding
&b HK$20,000 RERR
20,000 A &R
Well Dragon Electronics Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 100% - Inactive
HEETARAR A TR EEXEB
ENREETERAR PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Huizhou Telefield Limited (Note) HE HK$15,000,000 telecommunications and
& 15,000,000 7T other products
EAREMERNRERHE
ERERBE (M) BRAF PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Trading of appliances
Aiko Beauty (Shenzhen) Limited (Note) ~ HEl HK$1,000,000 E5E5
& 71,000,000% 7T
Faps (F) BRATF PRC Registered capital of 64% 53%  Trading of communications
Smart Gears (Shenzhen) Limited (Note) ~ & RMB1,500,000 products and the provision

AR ARE1,500,0007T
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Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as

follows (Continued):

Name of subsidiary

WELRER

BMNFEETERAH
Guangzhou Telefield Limited (Note)

ENFEEFERAF
(MEEMNTEBRENERAT)

Guangzhou Telefield Medical
Devices Limited (Note)

SrtenE (L) BRAF

Telefield Vision (Shanghai) Limited (Notg)

HanEE (R ARAR
Xin Qu Pin (Shenzhen) Limited

Place of incorporation/ Issued and

establishment

MR/ b

PRC
G

PRC
G

PRC
G

PRC
e

Note:  English names for identification purpose.

paid up capital

ERTRARRA

Registered capital of
US$7,060,000
i &77,060,000% T

Registered capital of
US$200,000
& 4200,000% T

Registered capital of
US$520,000
i & 4520,000% T

Registered capital of

HK$500,000 (2013: Nil)

& £500,0005 7
(Z3-=%: &)

The Company held Telefield Holdings Limited directly and held

other subsidiaries indirectly.

All subsidiaries established in the PRC are Wholly Foreign-Owned

Enterprises.

Although the Group owns less than 50% of the equity interest

in STI Technology Limited, STI Technology Limited is treated

as subsidiary because the Group is able to control the relevant

activities as a result of the majority voting right to direct relevant

activities of STI Technology Limited.

Annual Report F%§ 2014
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W (4E) -

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/profit

sharing
ElREREER
RER/HTEFASN
2014 2013
Z8-QmEF “T-=F

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% =

Principal activities

IRER

Manufacture of
telecommunications and
other products

EAREMERMNEE

Manufacture and sale of
medical devices
BEXENZERHE

Marketing and distribution of
computer accessories

LHERDHEME

Inactive

LEXH

Wit EXELEHFEE -

AN B H B A Telefield Holdings Limited
REgEHFEHEMMEAR -

PR BRI B AR RIINEEE

% -

BEAEERESEMBZAR AR ZRE
DIRB0% @ BZRRBRAMBAF - R
AEAKEREBEESENMRARARA
AR RAZHBREEAIZEHIAREE

& o
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 22.

The following table shows information of a subsidiary that have

RHB 2 ERRE (&)

TRINFHEAEAREE NS BEANIEE
PettEas ([FEIZERR MRS ) Ay — RPN 2 B1HY
B o BRI R IR R AIEE A

non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The
summarised financial information represents amounts before

inter-company eliminations. K& % °
TrekStor GmbH
2014 2013
—Z-NF —Z-=F
Principal place of business/country of incorporation Germany/Germany
TEEENY AMRIEAR &E /26
% of ownership interests held by NCI R AR A DL 49% 49 %
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:
Non-current assets EMENEE 2,816 1,885
Current assets mEEE 254,375 321,537
Non-current liabilities EmBAE (113) (281)
Current liabilities mENafE (332,710) (338,639)
Net liabilities BEEE (75,632) (15,498)
Accumulated NCI RET I RS (35,338) (5,872)
Year ended 31 December: BE+-A=1+—HLFE:
Revenue WA 517,733 540,464
(Loss)/Profit (EB18),/ &= (67,759) 8,213
Total comprehensive income ’iﬁﬂﬁl?\i@ ) (64,685) 7,877
(Loss)/Profit allocated to NCI DETIERER 2 (B1E), & F (33,202) 3,700
Net cash generated in operating activities KL EBFTISIR &R 15,282 4,928
Net cash used in investing activities BEERHFTAE TR (3,143) (632)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RESES) (FrA),/ 8R4
financing activities il (21,289) 3,898
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BekReZEY (),
cash equivalents EANFEE (9,150) 8,294
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Group

Unlisted investments:

Share of net assets

Amounts due from associates

Impairment loss

Exchange difference

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

FLEMERE :

I EERE

R NI

B BT 1R
PE N ER

As at 31 December 2014, the amounts due from associates

included a loan to an associate granted during 2014 with principal
amount of EUR300,000 which is unsecured, interest-bearing at
the 4% per annum and repayable on 31 December 2021. The
remaining balance of amounts due from associates is unsecured,

interest free and has no specific repayment terms.

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2014 and 2013

are as follows:

Name

a8

KEYOS GmbH

King Choice Limited
HEIBRRA

Place of
incorporation/
registration
ML B

Germany
e

Hong Kong
5

Issued and
paid up capital
BRTRARRAE

Share capital of
EUR 41,667
xR 41,667BUT

10,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

10,0008 R E(E 14T
H LR

rEE
2014 2013
—E2-mF —F—=
LGy HK$'000
F#T FAT
51 2
12,396 4,313
(10,213) (4,165)
169 (148)
2,403 -
R-T-meE+=A=+—8 - mlEs
ARREAER - E—MER—RHLEA

A% H A 28 & %85 300,000 TR E R
ZERBEER - RIBNEF KB
WERZZEZ—F+-A=+—RHEE -
FEY B & N RIZIE R B2 T RS BR A AR -
BB RERTEERD -

AEBMEARR _T—NER_T—=
FHtZA=+—BZ#FBWOT :

Percentage of

ownership interest

Principal activities

EHEERERE O FEXREK
2014 2013
—F-mFE  -T-=F
30% 30%  Designing, developing and
distributing smart key
Ret - BERDHE R
49% N/A  Investment holding
MER  REERR

Annual Report F%§ 2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE - =

—mE+—A=t—BLLFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The following table shows, in aggregate, the carrying amounts of

interests in associates and the Group’s share of the amounts of

23.

REEE A RINRE (B
R Al BRI (B R R

T%@J/T\EA Bp

DIEREREARETBEXRN A E

all individually immaterial associates that are accounted for using ,E'juﬁg,%gﬁja’j o TH 4AEE o
the equity method.
2014 2013
—EF-mF —F=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At 31 December: R+=—RA=+—8:
Carrying amounts of interests R AREE 2,403 -
Year ended 31 December: BE+t=-A=+—HLEE:
Revenue WA 1,162 96
Loss after tax BRI ER (2,525) (2,314)
Other comprehensive income Ema2mkas = =
Total comprehensive income 2HEWA LR (2,525) (2,314)
24. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 24, A—RBEELENKRE
Group REEH
2014 2013
—EF-mE —FT=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Unlisted investment in Hong Kong: BEENIELMRE
Share of net assets EIhEEFE 117 N/A A~
Amount due from a joint venture B —REAE S ERIE 17 N/A T
134 N/A T

Details of the Group’s joint venture at 31 December 2014 is as

R-ZB—NE+-_A=+—HaELEN

follows: BT :
Place of Issued and Percentage of Principal

Name incorporation paid up capital ownership interest activities

£ = B 3L it B ERTRAZRAE EhEEEEEZEILE TEEK

Groovio Company Hong Kong 400,000 ordinary 50% Trading of audio

Limited share of US$1 each based products
B 400,000 B REE1ETT SHEEmMER
BB
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INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

The following table shows the Group’s share of the amount of
Groovio Company Limited accounted for using the equity method.

24,

—mE+t—A=t—RHILLtEFEE

R—BaEEENRE (&)

TRINRAEE D

iR REANRDN

Groovio Company Limited )78 °

2014 2013
—ZE—mF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHT
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8":
Carrying amounts of interests HEREREE 134 N/A T
Year ended 31 December: BZE+-—A=1+—HLEFE:
Revenue WA - N/A i
Loss after tax BRI ER (1,433) N/A 73 F
Other comprehensive income HEian2mks - N/A TR
Total comprehensive income 2HE WA LES (1,433) N/A i@
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 25. AtHESMEE
Group NEE
2014 2013
—EF-mE T Es
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHT
Unlisted equity securities, at cost JE TR ARE S - KA 2,340 2,340
Less: Impairment loss B REEE (2,340) (2,340)
At 31 December 2014, the Group has certain minority equity R-E—NFE+-_A=+—8 ' ~"&EE#%

interest in Touch Media International Holdings, which is a private
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

ATouch Media International HoldingsHI#&

FOBBE

NGV R VN GE=2 4
iiDAvA: VNN
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26. INVENTORIES 26. FE

Group ANEE

2014 2013
—F-mF —F—=

HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT THET
Raw materials R 60,858 61,538
Work in progress H Ak 42,109 39,771
Finished goods 2UAK 152,742 157,364
Goods in transit EEEM 34,434 34,283
290,143 292,956

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit.
The credit terms generally range from 30 to 120 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers, payment
in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by the directors.

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice date, and

27. RBWEF R
AEBERSIBUEEFRETESE -
EEH— BN TFI0AREI20K - BEEF
HERSEERE - 1P —RAENK
I o AR BB D M R IR B B R AR R B A
BEBISER - ES TR0 SR -

A& BRI T A BN R KE 5 R (kR

net of allowance, is as follows: BB BRROITT ¢
Group rEE

2014 2013
—E—MF —T—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
0 to 90 days 0E 90K 302,141 387,681
91 to 180 days 91£180K 7,835 25,835
181 to 365 days 181ZE 365K 589 5,764
Over 365 days 365K+ 5,083 1,490
315,648 420,770
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27.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables:

FEI‘IQ,ET%E'E (mﬁ)

FEME 5 iR R B B RRE DN T -

2014 2013

—E2-mF —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

F&T TFET

At 1 January w—A—H 1,023 3,635
Allowance for the year FERE 2,291 2,843
Reversal for the year FEREEME - (2,612)
Bad debts written off i sr AR - (2,843)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 3,314 1,023

As of 31 December 2014, trade receivables of approximately
HK$64,879,000 (2013: HK$96,366,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. An aging analysis of

these trade receivables is as follows:

RZZE—ME+-_A=+—8 EKZ
PR #764,879,00058 T (=T — =4 :
96,366,000/ T) B EA AR MBI R IRIE © 7%

EFRREHEBIEPAR

e

BHRLE - ZFREE SRR KR D

AR

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Up to 3 months =@EAR 56,298 85,760
Over 3 months ={EAUE 8,581 10,606
64,879 96,366

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are AREERKE ZEFEMEATIIEES

denominated in the following currencies: & :

2014 2013
—ZF-mF —F=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
United States dollar ESv 230,494 251,052
Hong Kong dollar BT 1,318 788
Renminbi AR 6,539 8,255
Euro BT 75,435 159,171
Others Hih 1,862 1,504
Total et 315,648 420,770
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28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 28. FA{IFUIE s &R EMEKTIE
RECEIVABLES

Group Company
rEE /N
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-MF —T—=-F ZE-NF —ZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&xT FH&TT FExT FHEIT

Prepayments SENEOE 4,810 4,643 145 =
Deposits & 4,785 7,912 - =
Factoring deposits HRRBLS 47,139 22,752 - =
Purchase deposits BERE 21,160 35,145 = =
Other receivables H fth pE U FhE 38,342 23,577 - -
116,236 94,029 145 -
29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES 20. fTESREE &R
Group REE
2014 2013
—E—EF —_F—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
At fair value BEATE
Currency options — assets B - BE 4,824 =
Currency options — liabilities HiHE - 8E = (6,119
Forward contracts — liabilities REBEH — A& (82) -
4,742 (6,119)
The Group utilises currency options and forward contracts to REEF A EE KRS LR ERE
mitigate foreign currency exposure of purchases denominated in (PASNEEHE) TR S B B E g

foreign currencies.
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES  29.

(Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s currency options and forward
contracts are based on the valuation performed by Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional valuer. The
key assumptions used are as follows:

TELREE ABE(E)

AREBENERHEERE NN FER
—’Eﬁ?%_LE%{ETEEﬂiﬁqJ EHEERAR
HEITHEE - FTAZ2/KRWT ¢

2014 2013
—B—MmF ==
Currency options =g:-3-iF
(Short EUR, Long USD) (BEBUT - BEZXTT)
Average strike exchange rate (EUR/USD) T EER (Bt %) 1.37 w32
Time to expiration (year) [EmEERE (F%) 0.079 - 0.310 0.063 - 0.134
Contract amounts Rk EUR 4 million EUR 16 million
4,000,000t 16,000,0008X 7T
2014 2013
—ZF-lmF —F—=
Forward contracts EHEYN
(Long RMB, Short USD) (BEARY - BEXT)
Forward exchange rate (USD/RMB) RHER (X1, ARE) 6.25 N/A T iE A
Time to expiration (year) [E MR (FE) 0.162 - 0.652 N/A &
Contract amounts X USD2 million N/A
2,000,000 T i@ A

AMOUNT DUE FROM A NON-CONTROLLING  30.

SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount due from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

FE UWx — [ Y B 2 B SR IR AR R K
H

FEN —RIM B A R R AR R AR R IR
8 RIEETENRE -
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The cash and cash equivalents of the Group and Company are

as follows:

Cash on hand EFRE

Cash in transit RIS

Cash at bank RTINS

Cash and cash equivalents REEERERERD
in the consolidated ReRBEEEEY

statement of cash flows

The bank and cash balances of the Group and Company are
denominated in the following currencies:

United States dollar ETT
Hong Kong dollar BT
Renminbi AR
Euro 8L T
Others EAh

As at 31 December 2014, the bank and cash balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to approximately
HK$14,883,000 (2013: HK$16,522,000). Conversion of RMB
into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

Annual Report 3} 2014

AEBRARANRE LR FEMN
T~

Group Company
rEE N

2014 20183 2014 2013
ZE—MFE —FT—=F ZB-NF —_ZT=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T THER FAT
1,272 475 - -
47 3,148 - =
184,433 179,515 5,728 2,622
185,752 183,138 5,728 2,622

AEB RARRBHIA T GBI ERRTT
NIRE &

Group Company
£33 AT

2014 2013 2014 2013
T-mE —F-=F —¥-DNF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT THET FAT
55,377 60,519 - -
40,776 26,506 5,728 2,522
73,660 70,456 - -
13,850 24,995 - -
2,089 662 - -
185,752 183,138 5,728 2,622

RZZE—MF+=ZA=+—H ££H
RARB(TARBDFENRITERE S
48R A #914,883,0008 L (Z T — =4 -
16,522,000 7T) - AR IR AINEAT
BN B B 5 R AETE - BIE REE
B TERAERR ©
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TRADE PAYABLES 32. ENEZERX
The aging analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, is AEBZEZAHRAENENEZERDY
as follows: BRI DITIAT -
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
0 to 90 days 0ZE90K 251,580 312,898
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 583 3,160
181 to 365 days 181E365K 26,317 588
Over 365 days 365 KA 2,022 1,594
280,502 318,240
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are REBLATIEES|EENE SRR
denominated in the following currencies: [E(=R (N
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
United States dollar ET 138,084 194,734
Hong Kong dollar BT 94,593 61,385
Renminbi AR 18,865 16,818
Euro BT 28,799 44,503
Others Hib 161 800
Total HEt 280,502 318,240
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33. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 33. FEREARHMENRIE
Group Company
REHE AKATE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-mFE —T=F —T-HNFE —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHIT FHEx FHT
Accrued salaries ERES 110,187 104,507 - -
Accrued expenses TR 122,533 89,625 2,248 2,133
Customer deposits and B Pike RTEWEIAR
receipts in advance 25,069 20,953 -
Other payables H b fE T3R8 8,458 14,206 - -
266,247 229,291 2,248 2,133

34. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 34.

SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

FEAS B B 2 Rl FE 2 IR AR SR K

The amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries JRE AT B I 2 B S22 AR A BR TR IR 7 AR

are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. REREETEENS -
35. BANK BORROWINGS 35. HRITEE
Group TEE
2014 2013
—E-IF —F—=

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FHET

Bank loans RITERK 65,875 72,622

Import/export loans ®HEOER 51,200 39,191

117,075 111,813
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35. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 35. RITHEE(E)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated REELTHIESSENEEREE
in the following currencies:

Hong Kong United States

dollar dollar Euro Total
BT EYn BT F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THERT THEr TERT
At 31 December 2014 N-EE—E
t=A=+—H
Bank loans IRITER 45,000 2,012 18,863 65,875
Import/export loans EHEOER 25,896 25,304 - 51,200
70,896 27,316 18,863 117,075
Hong Kong United States
dollar dollar Euro Total
BT T BT Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAT FAL FAT
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%F
+=-—A=+—8
Bank loans IRITER 35,000 16,265 21,357 72,622
Import/export loans EHEOEK 32,365 6,826 = 39,191
67,365 23,091 21,357 111,813
The average interest rates at 31 December were as follows: R+ZA=+—B8FEFNENT :
2014 2013
—E—-MF ===
Bank loans IRITER 2.07% 2.63%
Import/export loans i HBOEX 2.97% 3.07%
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35.

36.

162 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited A ZXEp %

BRI

—mE+—A=t—BLLFE

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Bank approximately HK$20,875,000 (2013:
HK$22,122,000) are arranged at fixed interest rates and expose

loans of

the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Other borrowings are
arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group’s bank borrowings
were secured by the Corporate guarantee of the Company, certain
subsidiaries and certain non-controlling shareholders and personal
guarantee by a director of a subsidiary.

PRODUCT WARRANTY PROVISIONS

The movement in the Group’s product warranty provisions are
analysed as follows:

35.

36.

ﬁEﬁ%E%@zo,em,ooo}%ﬁ(:;—EE :
22,122,000/ 7T )i [EE MR B - FA%E
BEEEATFEFERR - HtfEEHAZF
8 FAEEmEE S RENRAR

Ro_E—NER-FT—=F+=-A=+—
B AKERITEEUEARR - ETHE
NE) BT IR A A RIERA R —
B A R E S EARRIEER -

EmRARE
AEEERRBBEEDHONTOT ¢

2014 2013

—2-mE =F—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTER FAT
At 1 January n—H—H 19,343 17,463
Provision used EBAEE (9,967) (10,668)
Unused provision reversed B O KB ARG (398) (3,841)
Additional provision EHIME R 14,768 15,945
Exchange differences M H =R (1,861) 444
At 31 December wNt+t=-—A=+—H 21,885 19,343

The Group has committed to repurchase its products from or
offer replacement of its products to certain distributors when
these distributors receive returned goods from unsatisfied ultimate
consumers. Such kind of provision for product warranties are
recognised based on past experience of level of repairs and
returns, discounted to their present value as appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_-_ZT—NFE+_A=+—HILtFE

RCA TrekStor Fargo

(note a) (note b) (note ¢) Total
RCA TrekStor Fargo

(Pff=Ea) (Pt =Eb) (KizEe) st

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT

At 1 January 2013 R-ZT—=%—H—H 9,782 2,704 6,811 19,297
Settlement during the year RERNFE (7,748) - - (7,748)
Change of fair value during the year FE A F{E % 177 2,329 (845) 1,661
Exchange differences P& i = 5E - 195 - 195
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=%F
+=-—RA=+—H 2,211 5,228 5,966 13,405
Settlement during the year RERNBE (2,211) - (614) (2,825)
Change of fair value during the year FE QT {EE - (1,635) (4,401) (6,036)
Exchange differences e H =58 = (470) i (470)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF
+=ZA=+—H - Rz 951 4,074
At 31 December 2014 R-ZEE—MF
+=A=+—H
Current liabilities RBEE - 3,123 305 3,428
Non-current liabilities FRBEE - - 646 646
- 3,123 951 4,074
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%F
+=—A=+—8
Current liabilities mEEE 2,211 - 1,265 3,476
Non-current liabilities ERHEE = 5,228 4,701 9,929
2,211 5,228 5,966 13,405
(@)  The contingent consideration for acquisition of RCA @ R-ZETAFRERCARKE é%
business telephone system distribution business in 2009 is B HEEBHIARETIRE—
based on certain percentage of net sales of Telefield NA Inc. ZNEFEEZT—= iﬁiTeleﬂeld
for the calendar year 2009 to 2013 with annual minimum NA Inc & F8BE TEALLAFE -
guaranteed amounts increased progressively throughout the HEEREEREBENRAERAESFA
five calendar years. IR o
(b)  The contingent consideration for acquisition of TrekStor () R Z=ZZZFNF UK TrekStor %
multimedia product distribution business in 2009 is based BE@OHEBOIKAKRE LR
on 20% of accumulated consolidated taxable profit of 1% WL B8 1% A 4F TrekStor GmbH &
TrekStor GmbH and TrekStor Limited for the five years after TrekStor Limited 2 5t 47 & FE &R 1%
acquisition or 10% of yearly consolidated taxable profit of i M) 89 20% 35 W B 1% T F TrekStor
TrekStor GmbH and TrekStor Limited for the five years GmbH X2 TrekStor Limited & & 47
after acquisition, whichever is higher. The total contingent BERBEFO10% (ABEER
consideration is capped at EUR500,000. E)E - IAREBEBEELRE

500,000 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

The Group acquired the Fargo communications product
distribution business on 3 October 2012 by subscribing
53% of enlarged share capital of Fargo Telecom Group.
As an integral part of the business combination, the Group
agreed to purchase from the former controlling shareholder
of Fargo Telecom Group up to 42.3% of the enlarged share
capital in 4 equal lots before 30 April 2015 (“Subsequent
Acquisition Arrangement”) with reference to the financial
results of Fargo Telecom Group. Under such Subsequent
Acquisition Arrangement, on 16 June 2014, the Group
acquired 10.575% of enlarged share capital by paying
HK$614,000. The second and third lots of shares totaling
21.15% of enlarged share capital would be acquired by
the Group on 30 April 2015. On 1 May 2014, the Group
agreed with the former controlling shareholder of Fargo
Telecom Group to postpone the purchase date of the last
lot of shares (i.e. 10.575% of enlarged share capital) under
the Subsequent Acquisition Arrangement to 30 April 2017.

The fair values of the above balances at the end of
each reporting period are based on valuation results of
Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent firm
of professional valuer. The discount rates used in the
valuations at end of reporting period are as follows:

RCA RCA
TrekStor TrekStor
Fargo Fargo
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REBHRN -_ZE——F+H=0%5
i@ 3R B8 Fargo Telecom& E53% 2
S A AU B Fargo B E D
HETS - ERETEE O 2 4R ED
o ANEELLEFargo Telecom
EECHBEREERER=_ZE—h
0 A=+ B ATA4TFRE DK
53 A Fargo Telecom %= [ A1 12 A% A%
HEERZ42.3% 0 &EARA
(MMEBYWHELRHE]) - RBZIEBW
B2y R-ZE—MEXA+TA
H - ANEEF B2 [1614,0007 7T
W EE10.575% 2 SRR - 485t
R21.15% 2 RIEARA 2 E—F
RE=ZFROBHEAEENR_T
—hFEMA=THKE K%
—WWFERA—HB - A&EEHEFargo
Telecom s B A1 15° A% A% 5 17 7€ 16 18
BBWEZHE TR RE—FRG
(B A R AR Z210.575% ) Hy U i
AfE—T—+FMA=+H-

PSR ERERRO D FES
R BXRGEEMTHENEER
RAIMGESREE - RHREHR

RHEFTANITERDT
2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=F
N/A TE A 5.0%
N/A 7 EH 1.95%

2.37% - 3.47% 1.47% — 3.24%
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DEFERRED TAX 38.

Group

IEFERIE
REE

Accelerated  Valuation of  Valuation of Revaluation

tax intangible contingent of land and
depreciation assets  consideration buildings Others Total
MERKAE  EVEEME SARERE 1HRETEH -4 h)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr Thn T T TR ThL
At 1 January 2013 W=F-=#-f-H (2,018) (20,157 10,680 3,208) 1,49 (18,209)
Credit/{charge) to proft or loss FREaTI NG /(BR)
for the year (note 11) (HiE1)
- origination and reversal of -EREREERER
temporary differences 4 4,855 (1,084) - (256) 3,606
Charge to equity for the year ERERTIAER = = = (165) = (165)
Acquisition of a subsidlary (note 41(c)  WE—HHERA (H:410) - (475) - - - (475)
Exchange differences EREE - (110) - - - (110)
At 31 December 2013 and RZE-=F+-f=t-HRZ
1 January 2014 F-ME-A-H (1,977) (15,887) 9,646 (3,373) 1,238 (10,35)
Credit/(charge) to proft or loss EEBETIBLE/(BR) (B
for the year (note 11) H11)
- origination and reversal of -EEEEELREM
temporary differences 46 4,528 (148) = 1,485 5911
Credit to equity for the year TAEEER - - - 9 - 99
Acquisition of a subsidlary (note 41(a)  WE—EHELA (#:4149) - (982) - - - (982)
Exchange differences EHZER = 301 - - ¥, 01
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+ZA=1—H (1981) (12,020) 9,498 (3274) 2723 (5,004)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
consolidated statement of financial position purposes:

AT BBLAR G MR R IRER E AR
DT

2014 2013

—E-mF —E—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
THxT THET
Deferred tax assets EIERIEE B 12,221 10,884
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIBEE (17,225) (21,287)
(5,004) (10,3593)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$76.9 million (2013: HK$15.1 million)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are losses of approximately HK$1.1 million (2013:
HK$2.9 million) that will expire before 2018. Other tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in
subsidiaries are insignificant.

RIBEHR - AEEES *EQME%
B4 576,900,000 T (ZE—= :
15,100,000/ 7T ) + A] AR 0 R 2K &
FI o R AR BE TR AR s A SRR - B
EERERARBDARBEBNEEHEE
E- - ABABEFBEBREBERZ=Z—N
FRIE M ETEA A1,100,0008 T (==
—=4% : 2,000,000/%7T) - EMhFiIEEE
A4 R B4 o

KB A RS ARNERREEY TEKX -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &&= —Z—

ME+—A=+—RIFE

Company PN
2014 2013
~E-mF e s
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
K& E RE ki
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BRAEENOAETEAR
At 1 January and at 31 December »—A—BKkN+=ZA=1—H 10,000,000,000 100,000 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BRAEEOVAETLRR
At 1 January and at 31 December R—A—BRRTZA=+—H 411,714,000 4,117 411,714,000 4,117

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise
the return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment of
dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group is to

have a public float of at least 25% of the Company’s shares in
order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange.

Annual Report &%} 2014
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(a)

(b)

(c)

Group

For the year ended 31 December 2014 EHZE—Z

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein are presented in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

Company

At 1 January 2013

Profit for the year

2013 interim dividend and
2012 final dividend paid

At 31 December 2013

At 1 January 2014

Profit for the year

2014 interim dividend and
2013 final dividend paid

At 31 December 2014

n=

F
=

N
R
N

n=

&
=

JiN

Share

premium

account

RO RER

HK$'000

FHET

T—=F—H—H 115,508

& % A =
NZZ—=F+H
BER_—_F—_F

REARR B =

—T—=%F

+—-RA=+—H 115,508

—mE—HA—H 115,508

bt -
NZZ—MHFPH
er —T—=4%

REAIR B -

—E—F
+=—A=+—H” 115,508

Nature and purpose of reserves

Share premium represents the amount of the excess

of issue price of the Company’s shares over its par

value.

The merger reserve represents the difference

between the nominal value of the shares issued by

the Company in exchange for the nominal value of

the share capital of its subsidiaries arising from the

Group Reorganisation.
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(a)

—E+-A=+—HILFE

REE
AEBFESELEEYNGEIE
=R HMEERER REARE
FRANZT -

(b) ARF

Merger Retained
reserve profits Total
BOHREE  REEF e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THTT THTT THET
3,171 8,948 127,627
- 17,836 17,836
- (14,410) (14,410)
3,171 12,374 131,053
3,171 12,374 131,053
- 12,519 12,519
- (16,469) (16,469)
3,171 8,424 127,103

(c) REMERAN

B A7 gt 18 R AR 2 R) AR 7
MEBETEBBEEENS
B o

EHEBRARESEEMR
ARRBEITHROOEENR
BEEK B QR RAEE
ZER



For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—MNE+-A=+—HILFE

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 3(e)(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

The property revaluation reserve has been set up
and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for land and buildings in note 3(f)
to the consolidated financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the difference between the nominal value of shares
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group
reorganisation in 1997, over the nominal value
of shares of Telefield Holdings Limited issued in
exchange therefor.

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable,
is appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC.

The capital reserve represents (i) the present value
of future consideration of Subsequent Acquisition
Arrangement of Fargo Telecom Group (note 37(c))
at inception and (i) gains/losses directly reflect in
equity resulted from change of equity interests in
subsidiaries without change of control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finanoial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z —Z—

B IR HRAR MR

mE+—A=t—RAILFE

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 41. #ZREeBE&RERMK
CASH FLOWS

(a)

On 4 June 2014, the Group acquired 83% equity interest (a)
of Falcom GmbH (“Falcom”) by subscribing newly allotted
ordinary shares of Falcom for cash consideration of
approximately HK$4,318,000 and payment of another
approximately HK$84,000 to existing shareholders. Falcom

is engaged in design, development and production of

automatic vehicle location tracking systems and asset

tracking products during the period. The amount of

acquisition-related costs was approximately HK$562,000.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Falcom acquired as at its date of acquisition, is as follows:

RZZE—NFESANA - RNEESE
BRI & R (E 44,318,000 TR
% Falcom GmbH ([ Falcom J) it
BEEREABAERRSINEZA
#784,0007% 7T - ifn 42 Falcom &Y
83% M # ° Falcom HA At £ &
i ABEREEBSEFMEM RS
MEERBED - WHBBKARL
£562,0008 7T °

RUEE B EA - FalcomAy B2 Y B a]
HRBENABEBENAFEENT

HK$’000
FHET

Net assets acquired: EWBEETE
Fixed assets (note 18) BEEE (#:F18) 1,373
Trademark (note 21) iR (Kaz21) 992
Technologies (note 21) Bl (HtiE21) 842
Customer relationship (note 21) BEFBE (Kat21) 1,693
Inventories FE 3,384
Other receivables o FE YL SRIE 58
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S 5,292
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 BRI H At FE T 3R (5,087)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 38) BERIBEE (H7£38) (982)
Non-controlling interest SRR = (1,295)
6,320
Discount on acquisition (note 9) W BB TR (K1729) (1,918)
4,402
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE-Z—WNE+-A=1+—HItFE

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 41. #ZE8BHESRERKMFTE)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(@) (Continued) (a) (#&)
HK$’000
FET
Satisfied by: RHFHEE :
Cash REe 4,402
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: AURBELENESRANFEE
Cash consideration paid EfRRENRE (4,402)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired ERERERREEFEY 5,292
890
The Group recognised discount on acquisition of 7N £ 3] Fe 5R W B T 5 49 1,900,000
approximately HK$1.9 million as other income. The directors BITAEMEA - AEBESR
of the Group are of the opinion that the discount on A U B Falcom BV T3 Jh 1= B —
acquisition of Falcom was resulted from a liquidation sales FABA AR EBRHEME o
of a well-established company in Germany.
Falcom contributed approximately HK$20,319,000 and MU AR E RS HRIEE
HK$1,971,000 to the Group’s revenue and loss for the year fA - Falcom % Bl & 2N & [ 55 2R 49
respectively for the period between the date of acquisition 20,319,000 7T % 1,971,000 7% 7T
and the end of the reporting period. FRUWAKEE -
If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2014, MKEARA—ZE—NFE— A —HBE
the Group’s total revenue for the year would have been b z}g%@imzqy)\gggg Ledy=1
HK$1,832,867,000, and loss for the year would have been 1,832,867,000/5 7T + FREEE S
approximately HK$42,929,000. The proforma information 4942 929,000 7T, o f5E &k Rt
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an SE F—ERBMYUER-Z
indication of the revenue and results of operations of the —E—A—AE SR AEEER
Group that actually would have been achieved had the B 4 152 ) g g A R AT AL B L R
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2014, nor is PHE B Y R R A rTE ) o

intended to be a projection of future results.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE-Z—NE&+-A=1+—HItFE

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 41. #ZE8BHESKREXRMFT(E)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

On 12 May 2014, the Group obtained control of Lucky (b) W—T—mERA+-—R K&£H
Century International Limited (“Lucky Century”), a company 7 1B 1938 € R (E 412,400,000
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and its subsidiaries 7 7T T Ace Choice Global Limited
(collectively referred to as “Lucky Century Group”) by paying (&7 1) # B Lucky Century
cash consideration of approximately HK$12,400,000 to Ace International Limited ( [ Lucky
Choice Global Limited (the “Vendor”) for 51% of the issued Century |) EFI 8 A 7] (FEF8[ Lucky
share capital of Lucky Century. Lucky Century Group holds Century £ @ |) 251% E 17 &

certain land and buildings in India.

K 15 ¥ Lucky Century B9 12 #)
# o Lucky Century & — B R HEE
BXREFEMAIZIA AR ° Lucky
Century & EIREIERBSE T i

RAETF o
HK$’000
FHEIT
Net assets acquired: ERBEEFE:
Fixed assets — land and buildings (note 18) BEEE — T REF (#:718) 24,314
Non-controlling interest SRR = (11,914)
12,400
HK$’000
FHET
Satisfied by: UTRH A EE :
Cash Re 12,400
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: HWBEENESRLFE
Cash consideration paid BENEEeRE (12,400)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE-Z—WNE+-A=1+—HItFE

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  41.
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Acquisition of a subsidiary — Rydeen North (c)
America Inc (“Rydeen”)

On 16 August 2013, the Group obtained control of Rydeen
North America Inc. (“Rydeen”) by subscribing newly
allotted ordinary shares of Rydeen for cash consideration
of HK$2,325,000. The newly allotted ordinary shares
represented 75% of the enlarged share capital of Rydeen.
Rydeen was engaged in design, development, trading,
distribution of consumer electronics. The amount of
acquisition - related costs was approximately HK$125,000.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Rydeen acquired as at its date of acquisition is as follows:

172 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited A ZXEp %

HERERERWE(E)

WE—RBHWE XA -
Rydeen North America
Inc.([ Rydeen |)
RZZE—=FN\A+ B K&
B35 38 DAIR € R {8 2,325,0007% 7T
2 B Rydeen North America Inc.
([Rydeen ) ¥THc 2 9 i@ A% + HX
5 Rydeen # 15 &l # o %7 Bc 3 &Y
38 A% 1 Rydeen £5 48 A B 2K 9
75% ° Rydeenft =& &t - F# -
BEERDHETHEM - WHEIEE
PR AN 8B4 75125,0008 7T, ©

R UL EE B H - Rydeenth & U BE A
HBREENRABHNAFEDT

HK$’000
FET
Net assets acquired: BB EEFE
Fixed assets (note 18) BEE&E (#:718) 530
Trademark (note 21) g (ftiE2e1) 692
Customer relationship (note 21) BEFBE (Kat21) 706
Inventories FE 1,246
Trade receivables JEWE 5 IR 1,021
Prepayments and deposits BNREBERES 776
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE A 3,381
Trade payables FERTE 5 BRK (608)
Accrued and other payables TEIRE A R H A FE I IR (2,949)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 38) EETIBEE (Hi38) (479)
Non-controlling interests SRR = (1,080)
3,240
Discount on acquisition (note 9) W BEITE (AY279) (915)
2,325
Satisfied by: ATFIHFREE :
Cash He 2,325
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: AU EERNIR S RmAFE :
Cash consideration paid EfRRENRE (2,325)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EWER e RAeEEY 3,381
1,056
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

Acquisition of a subsidiary - Rydeen North
America Inc (“Rydeen”) (Continued)

The fair value of trade receivables at the date of acquisition
amount to HK$1,021,000. The gross contractual amount of
those trade receivables acquired amount to HK$1,021,000
at the date of acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition
date of the contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected amount to HK$NIil.

The Group recognised discount on acquisition of
approximately HK$915,000 in other income (note 9) in
relation to the acquisition of Rydeen. The directors of the
Group are of the opinion that the discount on acquisition
of Rydeen mainly arising from good business relationship
between the Group and the former controlling shareholder
of Rydeen. The recognition of quantified intangible assets
including trademark and customer relationship, which are
valuable to the Company than the price paid.

Rydeen contributed approximately HK$6,001,000 and
HK$447,000 to the Group’s revenue and profit for the year
respectively for the period between the date of acquisition
and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2013,
total Group revenue for the year ended 31 December 2013
would have been HK$1,832,083,000 and profit for the year
would have been HK$32,152,000. The proforma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of the revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2013, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.
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WiE— BB LQaE -
Rydeen North America
Inc.([Rydeen |) (&)

FEWE 5 RN KE B2 ATE
#1,021,000/8 7T ° B U 2 % E e
I E S IR A UEE BN B A NS
E851,021,00078 7T ° FULHE B Hi%
BRI TREREHE RS RENR
EMFTATHET

7K £ & 7 Uk B Rydeen 73 £ b Uk A
Fe 37 W B2 4T 2 49.915,0007% 7t (Bt
FH) AEBEEERAR - WE
Rydeen®#rig i = ZER N A K E
£ Rydeen &Y BT 122 I% A% S A B 47 %
ERARMES - HARAME * AT
BROSLCEFEE(BEAER
EFBR)BRENERERESR -

MR RE®REHK
Rydeen 7 5l & K & B & 2K 49
6,001,000/ 7T 5244700078 T A
KEEm A o

MKERN - ZE—=6—F—HB5%
K AEBHEE-—T—=F1+—
A=+—RLEFEZBARE RS
1,832,083,000/8 7T * FE & A
32,152,000/ 7T » HEER R £
Z T —ERBWEKER=Z—=
F—A—HETZRAEEERATEE
ERMA R AL LR - IR RE
YR RFEERTEA o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

an\

BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE-Z—WNE+-A=1+—HItFE

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 40. #LGREH&REBXRMFT(E)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(d) Acquisition of a subsidiary - Greenware (d) UWiE—REWB QR —&RE8
Limited (“Greenware”) Mﬁ PR F] (AR )
On 1 July 2013, the Group obtained control of Greenware 75@—? —:i‘l:\ﬂ_—El ?ﬁ‘ﬁ
Limited (“Greenware”) by injecting cash of HK$400,000 into 1@&%&400,900;%755%%;}%1@&@%
Greenware in return for 80% of its issued share capital. Bﬁﬁﬂ_(féﬁﬁjﬁ%ﬁj) ' IRE80%
Greenware was engaged in environmental monitoring BRI - BEHERE R0
system integration services. TR o ARSI FIRR B R
SRR ©
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of ﬁéﬂﬂl%ﬁﬁﬂ CAORBL R B Y RE AT
Greenware acquired as at its date of acquisition is as BARERABRNATELT -
follows:
HK$’000
FET
Net assets acquired: EREEETE :
Fixed assets (note 18) BEEE (Hi718) 13
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8RR 88
Deposit paid ke 16
Bank balances RITAEER 20
Trade payable FEFTE RN (6)
Accrued and other payables TEIRE A N H b e 5B (201)
Non-controlling interests SRR = 14
(56)
Goodwill (note 20) &2 (f/:220) 456
400
Satisfied by: LATE A 0EE -
Cash Be 400
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: E BB E AR IRE R H 58
Cash consideration paid BENEeRE (400)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EWER e RACEEY 20
(380)

The fair value of trade receivables at the date of acquisition

amount to HK$88,000. The gross contractual amount of
those trade receivables acquired amount to HK$88,000 at
the date of acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date
of the contractual cash flows not expected to be collected
amount to HKS$NIl.
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(d)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

Acquisition of a subsidiary - Greenware
Limited (“Greenware”) (Continued)

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Greenware is
attributable to the anticipated profitability of the distribution
of the Group’s products in the new markets and the
anticipated future operating synergies from the combination.

Greenware contributed approximately HK$Nil and
HK$525,000 to the Group's revenue and loss for the year
respectively for the period between the date of acquisition
and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2013,
total Group revenue for the year ended 31 December 2013
would have been HK$1,825,674,000 and profit for the year
would have been HK$31,265,000. The proforma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of the revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2013, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE-Z—WNE+-A=1+—HItFE

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 41. #ZE8BHESRERKMFTE)

CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(e) Purchase of non-controlling interests of Fargo (e) UK BE 3F i Ik # & — Fargo
Telecom Group Telecom%[E
On 16 June 2014, the Group acquired 10.575% of Fargo AZE—NFERNATRE  AEE
Telecom Group’s equity interest under the Subsequent IRAR & B WS 5 (T 337 (c)) Ui
Acquisition Arrangement (note 37(c)). The effect of the Fargo Telecom ££ [& £ 10.575% #&
acquisition on the equity attributable to the owners of the o W SIEH AN EIRE AJEL
Company is as follows: R 2 BT
HK$'000
FAT
Share of net assets acquired ERBEREEEFE 3,094
Consideration paid in accordance with RIEREWEZES A E
Subsequent Acquisition Arrangement (614)
Settlement of financial liabilities at fair value  #EIZ AT EGAEBZNSRHEE
through profit or loss (note 37(c)) (B17£37(c)) 614
Gain recognised directly in equity EERERAEROKES 3,094
() Purchase of non-controlling interests in (il WEPSEEMERERLT
Telefield Lifestyle Limited I ER B
The Group acquired additional 5% of equity interests of rEER-_Z—HWF+A=1+NAB
Telefield Lifestyle Limited each on 29 October 2014 and AZZF-—ME+=-A=+—B%H
31 December 2014 (i.e. 10%). The effect of the acquisition AR ZEERRER AT RN
on the equity attributable to the owners of the Company is 5%% 5(B110%) - W EIRH A
as follows: RNEEEANBEERS 2 FENT ¢
HK$’000
FET
Share of net liabilities EhaEFE 439
Consideration paid ERRE -
Loss on acquisition recognised directly HERERERDIWEERE
in equity 439
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41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 41. HGREeH&REXRMET(E)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(9) Deemed disposal of partial interest in Able (g) EBELERBMRARAT
Trend Technology Limited 2w
On 29 January 2014, Able Trend Technology Limited (“Able R-ZFT—mF—A=-F+hH &K
Trend”) allotted shares to its non-controlling shareholders BRURERRAR([RB]) WA
with a consideration of HK$590, such that the Group’s ZRRRECE R - KERS0B
equity interest in Able Trend decreased by 5%. The effect TC - B AREREREE 2 BRAER D
of the acquisition on the equity attributable to the owners 5% ° B EHH AR A EE AR
of the Company is as follows: w2 BT -
HK$’000
FAT
Carrying net liabilities of non-controlling FiTHH & IR i 2 2
interests disposed ABfEFRE 134
Consideration RE =
Gain on disposal recognised directly in equity EEREZERN & 134
(h) Deemed disposal of partial interest in Affonso (h) FEE L EAffonsok B 2P
Group DR
On 31 December 2014, Affonso Limited allotted shares T—NME+ZA=+—8 -
to a non-controlling shareholder with a consideration of Affonso Limited ) F 312 3% A% 3R e
HK$6,200,000, such that the Group’s equity interest in R - KRB A6,200,000787T * H
Affonso Limited and its subsidiaries decreased by 49%. It A £ @R Affonso Limited & E ft
The effect of the acquisition on the equity attributable to BRRZRAERL49% o WHEEIE
the owners of the Company is as follows: HARRNRER AELER 2 EN
T~
HK$’000
FAT
Carrying net asset of non-controlling FTH & FE1E R i 28 2
interests disposed BESFE (3,240)
Consideration KRB 6,200
Gain on disposal recognised directly in equity EZERERBERRHERKZ 2,960
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE-Z—WNE+-A=1+—HItFE

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 41. #ZE8BHESRERKMFTE)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

. . : = £ B8 B B
() Deemed disposal of partial interest in Telefield i) M tlj%q:?fgﬂm{%ﬁ PR
Medical Imaging Limited ACIPAC g £
On 31 December 2014, Telefield Medical Imaging Limited R-_F—WMF+_A=+—H 7+
allotted shares to a non-controlling shareholder with a SHEEXERAMR DA R HIFZR
consideration of HK$450,000, such that the Group’s equity BRRECE AR A5 - (B /450,000
interest in Telefield Medical Imaging Limited decreased by U AEARERFSESKES
45%. The effect of the acquisition on the equity attributable BRAR]Z AR 45% ° WIEFIA
to the owners of the Company is as follows: HARNREE NEIG#D 2 BN
TS @
HK$’000
FHET
Carrying net liabilities of non-controlling Fr IR R 2
interests disposed BEFE 2,832
Consideration RE 450
Gain on disposal recognised directly in equity EZERERERR HEKZ 3,282
() Purchase of non-controlling interests () BEFZERER
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group H=z—Z—=F+-_A=+—H1t
acquired 33.3% interests in a 66.7% subsidiary from the FE - NEELAE S KE5,000%
non-controlling shareholders at a cash consideration of TCIA FEFE AR AR R M B L 5 66.7 %
HK$5,000. The effect of the acquisition on the equity =R B A FIRI33.3% i a © I
attributable to the owners of the Company is as follows: BEEEAQNREE ABGERS Y
BT :
HK$’000
FHET
Share of net liabilities in the subsidiary FEE FTUCBE B B 2 Bl AY
acquired BE%E 2,235
Consideration RE 5
Loss on acquisition recognised directly HERERERDIWEERE
in equity 2,240
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE-Z—NE&+-A=1+—HItFE

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has three (2013: three)
patent infringement claims lodged by E-Ink Corp. against one
of its subsidiaries, seeking for an injunction against the sale of
ebook reader and for a compensation of approximately HK$9.4
million (2013: HK$10.7 million). The management considers E-Ink
Corp.’s allegations are without merits and thus no provision for
loss had been provided. Subsequent to the reporting period, two
out of the three patent infringement claims were suspended by
Mannheim Court resulting from the favorable judgement to the
Group in parallel nullity action counter claim lodged by the Group
with the Federal Patent Court in Germany, whilst the third patent
claim was currently subject to the review of expert appointed by
Court in regard to its validity.

A copyright collecting agency has unilaterally announced copyright
fees for certain storage products and multimedia products of the
Group sold in Germany. Management estimated that the alleged
claims from the copyright collecting agency at the end of the
reporting period are approximately HK$44.6 million (2013: HK$53.9
million) and HK$95.7 million (2013: HK$57.7 million) respectively.
The directors consider that the unilaterally announced copyright
rates are either non applicable or excessive for these products
and respective provision, if required, has been duly made by the
Group to cover the expected maximum liabilities pursuant to the
best knowledge of the directors.
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43.

44,

B IR AR MR

—mE+—A=t—BLLFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43. EREIE
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting AEBRRE RO EAFRENT
period are as follows:
2014 2013
—E-MF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Plant and machinery R i a3
Contracted but not provided for BEATH B KRB - 1,332
Approved but not contracted for EHLEERETH 15,260 14,960
15,260 16,292
LEASE COMMITMENTS 44, THERIE
The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable RN AT RSECE B E AR RKIER
operating leases are payable as follows: EFIRERENT
2014 2013
—E2-mF —ZE—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F R 16,796 15,327
In the second to fifth years inclusive FE_FEERF 29,675 28,232
(EEMERIETEAN)
After five years AFE - 2,307
46,471 45,866

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its staff quarters, factories and offices. Leases are
negotiated for a range from one to ten years and rentals are fixed
over the lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z—N&E+_-A=1+—HIFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45. FERRZ
In addition to those related party transactions and balances BRERE ISR E MM T RENEES R
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the S REERIN - NEBEREINEREES G N
Group had the following transactions with its related parties during TS :
the year:
Name of directors having  HEEBHEERN 2014 2013
beneficial interest ESfE “E-|mE —-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TAT
Rent paid to related companies  NBEAFRSE
— Perpetual Rich Limited — Perpetual Rich Limited Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve  BFfét 54 780 780
~ Swintown Investment Limited ~ —fEREZEABRAH Mr. Ng Kim Yuen RIOREE 312 264
- Grand Access Limited —hABRAR Mr. Lee Kai Bon TEBEE 288 288
1,380 1,332
Sales to a related company HET-REELE
—Farindo Trade Services Limited ~ —Farindo Trade Services Limited  N/A NaR 3,700 953
Interest income from an associate 3 5 — B2 A BRI SIA
- KEYOS GmbH —KEYOS GmbH N/A NEA 146 175
Sales to a joint venture HET-HEELE
- Groovio Company Limited —Groovio Company Limited ~~ N/A T~aR 1,007 =
Sales to an associate HET-REEAR
- KEYOS GmbH —KEYOS GmbH N/A NEA 4,143 -
Impairment loss of amounts il Gl =NSE 0=
due from a associates RESE
- KEYOS GmbH —KEYOS GmbH N/A TEH 6,048 -
Management fee received from ~ B—fA S EUTEH
a joint venture ERE
~ Groovio Company Limited —Groovio Company Limted ~ N/A aR 60 -
The details of remuneration of key management personnel, FEEREXNENTHNENARRESER
represents the emoluments of directors of the Company paid FAEZ MRS ) SFIBE N E13()

during the year and set out in note 13(a).
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46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 22 January 2015, the Company granted a total of 4,117,140
share options to an Executive Director to subscribe for up to
4,117,140 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital
of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.65 per share. The
estimated fair value of the share options granted on grant date is

approximately HK$934,000.

47. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures of reportable segments (note 8) have
been restated to conform to the current period’s presentation. The
change in reportable segment reflects the Group’s realignment of
operations and comparative figures are retrospectively restated.

48. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue

by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2015.
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The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 and the consolidated assets, liabilities and equity of the Group as at

31 December 2014 are those set out in the audited financial statements.

The summary below does not form part of the audited financial statements.

RESULTS
Revenue
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

(Loss)/Profit from operations
Finance costs

Share of profit/(loss) of associates
Share of loss of a joint venture

(Loss)/Profit before tax
Income tax expense

(Loss)/Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
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2014
—B-mE
HK$’000
Tt

1,832,867
(1,484,356)

348,511
65,890
(161,722)
(189,141)
(83,675)

(20,137)
(15,873)
2
(1,433)
(37,441)
(4,832)

(42,373)

577
(42,850)

(42,273)

1,092,094
(740,547)
18,209

369,756

AEEEE_TMF+_A=1T—BLFEN
MAEXBERAEEN_ZT—NF+=-_A=+—H
MR EE - AEMESENEERYHREA

AT BRI MBS BRI B MR AR

2013 2012
—T—=F —T——F
HK$'000  HK$'000
FHBIT FAT
1,825,542 1,458,192
(1,452,278) (1,176,863)
373,264 281,329
23,872 15,686
(125,547) (91,515)
(153,618)  (125,378)
(66,988) (46,273)
50,983 33,849
(13,300) (10,854)
(129) =
37,554 22,995
(6,140) (3,507)
31,414 19,488
28,566 23,345
2,848 (3,857)
31,414 19,488
1,145,813 861,896
(755,423)  (498,115)
(12,596) (2,759)
377,794 361,022

2011
—T——F
HK$'000
FAT

1,309,390
(1,040,059)

269,331
7,501
(79,524)
(91,562)
(28,728)

77,018
(8,391)

68,627
(8,116)

60,511

57,051
3,460

60,511

771,530
(423,555)
7,948

355,923

2010
—E-EF
HK$'000
FAT

1,145,542
(892,929)

252,613
13,243
(73,022)
(79,086)
(40,858)

72,890
(4,425)

68,465
(12,754)

55,711

69,921
(14,210)

55,711

520,134
(347,863)
14,894

187,165



Listing: Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Stock code: 1143
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